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Dear Shareholder:
2020 was a year of growth for BV Financial, Inc. and its subsidiary, BayVanguard Bank.
The Company has grown from $294 million in assets to $816 million over the past year. Our net
income has grown from $2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2019 to $7.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2020.
In February 2020, we completed our acquisition of MB Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiary, Madison Bank of Maryland. This acquisition added three additional branches to our
network and $115 million in assets. This acquisition provided the Bank with its entrance into
Harford County, Maryland.
In November 2020, we completed our acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares and its wholly
owned subsidiary, 1880 Bank. This acquisition added six additional branches and $415 million in
assets. This continued our strategy of adding new markets with the addition of Talbot and
Dorchester counties on the eastern shore of Maryland.
As we all work through the Pandemic, the Bank was proud to provide assistance to our
existing customers as well as some new customers. The Bank, along with 1880 Bank, provided
over $50 million of PPP loans. In addition, the Bank temporarily suspended late charges, overdraft
fees and early withdrawal penalties on certificates of deposits. Finally, the Bank deferred loan
payments on $105.2 million in loans.
Edmund T. Leonard, the Chairman of the Company since its inception, retired in May. In
November, George Philippou resigned from the Board as his job no longer provided him the time
necessary to spend on the Company. We thank them both for their years of service to the Company
and wish them well. Kim Liddell, former President, CEO and Chairman of Delmarva Bancshares,
was appointed to the Board in November and elected as Chairman of the Company in January
2021. Gary Amereihn remains Chairman of the Bank.
Finally, we would like to thank all our shareholders for their continued support of the
Company.

David M. Flair
Co-President and Chief Executive Officer

Timothy L. Prindle
Co-President and Chief Executive Officer

7114 North Point Road, Edgemere, MD 21219
(410) 477-5000 * Fax (410) 477-3869
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April 1, 2021

Dear Stockholder:
You are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting of stockholders of BV Financial,
Inc. The meeting will be held at BayVanguard Bank’s main office, 7114 North Point Road,
Edgemere, Maryland on Thursday, May 6, 2021 at 3:00 p.m., local time.
The notice of annual meeting and proxy statement appearing on the following pages
describe the formal business to be transacted at the meeting. Directors and officers of the
Company, as well as a representative of Rowles & Company, LLP, the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm, will be present to respond to appropriate questions of
stockholders.
It is important that your shares are represented at this meeting, whether or not you attend
the meeting in person and regardless of the number of shares you own. To make sure your
shares are represented, we urge you to vote via the Internet or by completing and mailing the
enclosed proxy card. If you attend the meeting, you may vote in person even if you have
previously mailed a proxy card.
We look forward to seeing you at the meeting.
Sincerely,

Timothy L. Prindle
Co-President and Chief Executive Officer

David M. Flair
Co-President and Chief Executive Officer

ATTENDANCE AT THE ANNUAL MEETING IS DISCOURAGED
In light of the ongoing health concerns relating to the coronavirus and to best protect the
health of our employees, shareholders and community, we are requesting that shareholders DO
NOT ATTEND the Annual Meeting in person this year.
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BV Financial, Inc.
7114 North Point Road
Edgemere, Maryland 21219
(410) 477-5000
Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders
On Thursday, May 6, 2021, BV Financial, Inc. (the “Company”) will hold its annual meeting of
stockholders at BayVanguard Bank’s main office, 7114 North Point Road, Edgemere, Maryland. The
meeting will begin at 3:00 p.m., local time. At the meeting, stockholders will consider and act on the
following:
1.

The election of three directors;

2.

The approval of the BV Financial, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan;

3.

The ratification of the appointment of Rowles & Company, LLP as the independent
registered public accounting firm for the Company for the 2021 fiscal year; and

4.

Such other business that may properly come before the meeting.

NOTE: The Board of Directors is not aware of any other business scheduled to come before the
meeting.
Only stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 19, 2021 are entitled to receive
notice of and to vote at the meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the meeting.
Please vote via the Internet or by completing and signing the enclosed proxy card and mailing it
promptly in the enclosed envelope. The proxy will not be used if you attend the meeting and vote in
person.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Michael L. Snyder
Corporate Secretary
Edgemere, Maryland
April 1, 2021
IMPORTANT: The prompt return of proxies will save the Company the expense of further
requests for proxies to ensure a quorum. A self-addressed envelope is enclosed for your
convenience. No postage is required if mailed in the United States.
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BV FINANCIAL, INC.

__________________________________

PROXY STATEMENT

__________________________________
GENERAL INFORMATION
We are providing this proxy statement to you in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the
Board of Directors of BV Financial, Inc. for the 2021 annual meeting of stockholders and for any
adjournment or postponement of the meeting. In this proxy statement, BV Financial, Inc. may also be
referred to as “BV Financial,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” or “us.”
BV Financial is the holding company for BayVanguard Bank. In this proxy statement,
BayVanguard Bank may also be referred to as the “Bank” or “BayVanguard.”
We are holding the 2021 annual meeting at BayVanguard Bank’s main office, 7114 North Point
Road, Edgemere, Maryland on Thursday, May 6, 2021 at 3:00 p.m., local time.
We intend to mail this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card to stockholders of record
beginning on or about April 1, 2021.
INFORMATION ABOUT VOTING
Who Can Vote at the Meeting
You are entitled to vote your shares of BV Financial common stock that you owned as of March
19, 2021. As of the close of business on that date, 7,104,371 shares of BV Financial common stock were
outstanding, including 6,149,810 shares of common stock held by Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C. Each share of
common stock has one vote.
Ownership of Shares; Attending the Meeting
You may own shares of BV Financial in one or more of the following ways:
•

Directly in your name as the stockholder of record;

•

Indirectly through a broker, bank or other holder of record in “street name”; or

•

Indirectly in the BV Financial, Inc. Stock Fund in our 401(k) Plan or the BayVanguard Bank
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”).

If your shares are registered directly in your name, you are the holder of record of these shares
and we are sending these proxy materials directly to you. As the holder of record, you have the right to
give your proxy directly to us or to vote in person at the meeting.
If you hold your shares in street name, your broker, bank or other holder of record is sending
these proxy materials to you. As the beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, bank or
other holder of record how to vote by filling out a voting instruction form that accompanies your proxy
materials. Your broker, bank or other holder of record may allow you to provide voting instructions by
telephone or by the Internet. Please see the instruction form provided by your broker, bank or other
holder of record that accompanies this proxy statement. If you hold your shares in street name, you will
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need proof of ownership to be admitted to the meeting. A recent brokerage statement or letter from a
bank or broker are examples of proof of ownership. If you want to vote your shares of BV Financial
common stock held in street name in person at the meeting, you must obtain a written proxy in your name
from the broker, bank or other nominee who is the record holder of your shares.
Quorum and Vote Required
Quorum. We will have a quorum and will be able to conduct the business of the annual meeting
if a majority of the outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote are present at the meeting, either
in person or by proxy.
Votes Required for Proposals. At this year’s annual meeting, stockholders will be asked to
elect three directors, approve the BV Financial, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Equity Incentive
Plan”) and ratify the appointment of Rowles & Company, LLP as the Company’s independent registered
public accounting firm. In voting on the election of directors, you may vote in favor of the nominees,
withhold votes as to nominees or withhold votes as to any nominee. There is no cumulative voting for the
election of directors. Directors must be elected by a plurality of the votes cast at the annual meeting.
This means that the nominees receiving the greatest number of votes will be elected.

In voting on the approval of the Equity Incentive Plan, you may vote in favor of the proposal,
vote against the proposal or abstain from voting. To approve the Equity Incentive Plan, the affirmative
vote of a majority of the total shares eligible to be cast at a legal meeting at the annual meeting is
required.
In voting on the ratification of the appointment of Rowles & Company, LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm, you may vote in favor of the proposal, vote against the
proposal or abstain from voting. To ratify the selection of Rowles & Company, LLP as our independent
registered public accounting firm for fiscal 2021, the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
represented at the meeting and entitled to vote at the annual meeting is required.
Routine and Non-Routine Proposals. The rules of the New York Stock Exchange determine
for all companies whether proposals presented at stockholder meetings are routine or non-routine. If a
proposal is routine, a broker or other entity holding shares for an owner in street name may vote on the
proposal without receiving voting instructions from the owner. If a proposal is non-routine, the broker or
other entity may vote on the proposal only if the owner has provided voting instructions. A broker nonvote occurs when a broker or other entity is unable to vote on a particular proposal because the broker or
other entity has not received voting instructions from the beneficial owner. The election of directors and
the approval of the Equity Incentive Plan are currently considered non-routine matters, while the
ratification of Rowles & Company, LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for fiscal
2021 is currently considered a routine matter.
How We Count Votes. If you return valid proxy instructions or attend the meeting in person, we
will count your shares to determine whether there is quorum, even if you abstain from voting. Broker
non-votes also will be counted to determine the existence of a quorum.

In the election of directors, votes that are withheld and broker non-votes will have no effect on
the outcome of the election.
In counting votes on the proposal to approve the Equity Incentive Plan, abstentions and broker
non-votes will have the same effect as a negative vote.
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In counting votes on the proposal to ratify the selection of the independent registered public
accounting firm, abstentions will have the same effect as a negative vote while broker non-votes will have
no effect on the proposal.
Because Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C. owns more than half of the outstanding shares of BV Financial
common stock, the votes it casts will ensure the presence of a quorum and determine the outcome of Item
1 (Election of Directors), Item 2 (Approval of the Equity Incentive Plan) and Item 3 (Appointment of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm).
Voting by Proxy
The Company’s Board of Directors is sending you this proxy statement to request that you allow
your shares of Company common stock to be represented at the annual meeting by the persons named in
the enclosed proxy card. All shares of Company common stock represented at the meeting by properly
executed and dated proxies will be voted according to the instructions indicated on the proxy card. If you
sign, date and return a proxy card without giving voting instructions, your shares will be voted as
recommended by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Board of Directors recommends that you vote:
•

FOR each of the nominees for director;

•

FOR approval of the Equity Incentive Plan; and

•

FOR ratification of the appointment of Rowles & Company, LLP as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the 2021 fiscal year.

If any matters not described in this proxy statement are properly presented at the annual meeting,
the persons named in the proxy card will use their judgment to determine how to vote your shares. This
includes a motion to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to solicit additional proxies. If the annual
meeting is postponed or adjourned, your shares of Company common stock may be voted by the persons
named in the proxy card on the new meeting date, provided that the new meeting occurs within 30 days of
the annual meeting and you have not revoked your proxy. The Company does not currently know of any
other matters to be presented at the meeting.
You may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the meeting. To revoke your
proxy, you must either advise the Corporate Secretary of the Company in writing before your common
stock has been voted at the annual meeting, deliver a later dated proxy or attend the meeting and vote
your shares in person. Attendance at the annual meeting will not in itself constitute revocation of your
proxy.
Instead of voting by mailing a proxy card, registered stockholders can vote their shares of
Company common stock via the Internet. The Internet voting procedures are designed to authenticate
stockholders’ identities, allow stockholders to provide their voting instructions and confirm that their
instructions have been recorded properly. Specific instructions for Internet voting are set forth on the
enclosed proxy card. The deadline for voting via the Internet is 3:00 a.m., Eastern time, on May 6,
2021.
Participants in the ESOP or 401(k) Plan
If you participate in the ESOP or if you invest in the BV Financial Stock Fund in our 401(k) Plan,
you will receive a voting form for each plan that reflects the shares you may direct the trustees to vote on
your behalf under the respective plans. Under the terms of the ESOP, all allocated shares of BV Financial
common stock held by the ESOP are voted by the ESOP trustee, as directed by plan participants. All
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unallocated shares of Company common stock held by the ESOP and all allocated shares for which no
timely voting instructions are received are voted by the ESOP trustee in the same proportion as shares for
which the trustee has received timely voting instructions, subject to the exercise of its fiduciary duties.
Under the terms of the 401(k) Plan, a participant may direct the stock fund trustee how to vote the shares
in the BV Financial Stock Fund credited to his or her account. The stock fund trustee will vote all shares
for which it does not receive timely instructions from participants in the same proportion as shares for
which the trustee received voting instructions. The deadline for returning your voting instructions for
shares held through the ESOP or 401(k) Plan is April 27, 2021.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BOARD MATTERS
Director Independence
Because the Company is not listed on a national securities exchange, there are no independence
requirements for its directors. However, if the Company was to apply the current listing standards of The
NASDAQ Stock Market, all of its directors would be independent, except for Mr. Flair and Mr. Prindle,
each of whom is an employee of BV Financial and the Bank.
Committees of the Board of Directors
The following table identifies our standing committees and their members at December 31, 2020.
All members of each committee are independent in accordance with the listing requirements of The
NASDAQ Stock Market. Each committee operates under a written charter that is approved by the Board
of Directors that governs its composition, responsibilities and operations. Each committee reviews and
reassesses the adequacy of its charter at least annually.
Director
Gary T. Amereihn ......................................
William Streett Baldwin…………………
William B. Crompton, III ..........................
David M. Flair ...........................................
Joseph S. Galli ...........................................
Kim C. Liddell…………………………...
Brian K. McHale .. ....................................
Edmond B. Nolley, Jr. ...............................
Timothy L. Prindle ....................................
Joshua W. Posnick .....................................
Michael L. Snyder .....................................
Number of meetings in 2020 .....................
________________
*Chairman

Audit
Committee

Compensation
Committee

Nominating and
Governance Committee
X*

X*
X

X

X

X

X

X*
X
4

7
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Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is responsible for ensuring that BV Financial maintains
reliable accounting policies and financial reporting processes and reviewing the performance of BV
Financial’s independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit Committee selects the independent
registered public accounting firm and meets with them to discuss the results of the annual audit and any
related matters.
Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee is responsible for all matters
regarding BV Financial’s and the Bank’s employee compensation and benefit programs. The
Compensation Committee reviews all compensation components for the Company’s Chief Executive
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Officer and other highly compensated executive officers including base salary, bonus, equity incentives,
benefits and other perquisites. Decisions by the Compensation Committee with respect to the
compensation of executive officers are approved by the full Board of Directors. We do not have a
contractual arrangement with any compensation consultant who has a role in determining or
recommending the amount or form of executive or director compensation.
Nominating and Governance Committee. The Nominating and Governance Committee is
responsible for the annual selection of management’s nominees for election as directors and for
developing and implementing a set of policies and practices relating to corporate governance, including
implementation of and monitoring adherence to BV Financial’s corporate governance policy.

Director Compensation
The applicable fees that are paid to our non-employee directors for their service on
BayVanguard’s Board of Directors are listed below. Directors do not receive any compensation for their
service on the Board of Directors of BV Financial or Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C.
Fees per meeting of BayVanguard Bank:
Regular or Special Meetings .......................................................................................... $1,000
Committee Meetings Attended ....................................................................................... $ 500
Additional fee for Chairman of the Board per Meeting ................................................. $ 500
Additional fee for Chairman of the Audit Committee per Meeting ............................... $ 500
Board and Committee Meetings
During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board of Directors of BV Financial held 5
meetings and the Board of Directors of the Bank held 13 meetings. No director attended fewer than 75%
of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Board committees on which they served in 2020.
Director Attendance at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
The Board of Directors encourages directors to attend the annual meeting of stockholders. All
but 1 of the directors attended the previous annual meeting of stockholders.
STOCK OWNERSHIP
The following table provides information as of March 19, 2021 with respect to persons and
entities known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding
common stock. A person or entity may be considered to beneficially own any shares of common stock
over which the person or entity has, directly or indirectly, sole or shared voting or investing power.
Name and Address
Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C.
7114 North Point Road
Edgemere, Maryland 21219

Number of Shares Owned

Percent of Common Stock Outstanding

[86.55%]

6,149,810
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The following table provides information about the shares of Company common stock that may
be considered to be owned by each director or nominee for director of the Company and by all directors,
nominees for director and executive officers of the Company as a group as of March 19, 2021. A person
may be considered to own any shares of common stock over which he or she has, directly or indirectly,
sole or shared voting or investment power. Except as disclosed below, each of the named individuals has
sole or shared voting and investment power with respect to the shares shown. The number of shares
beneficially owned by all directors, nominees for director and executive officers as a group totaled
11.51% of our common stock as of March 19, 2021. Each director, director nominee and executive
officer owned less than 1% of our outstanding common stock as of that date.

Number of
Shares Owned
(Excluding Options)

Name
Gary T. Amereihn ...............................................
William Streett Baldwin .....................................
William B. Crompton, III ...................................
David M. Flair ....................................................
Joseph S. Galli ....................................................
Kim C. Liddell ....................................................
Brian K. McHale.................................................
Edmond B. Nolley, Jr. ........................................
Timothy L. Prindle .............................................
Joshua W. Posnick ..............................................
Michael L. Snyder ..............................................
All Directors, Director Nominees and
Executive Officers as a group (13 persons) ....

8,812
1,350
1,485
26,498(1)
29,709
55
3,221
500
28,153
100
100
109,845

Number of
Shares That May
Be Acquired
Within 60 Days by
Exercising Options
—
—
—
8,400
—

Total

—
—
—
—
—

8,812
1,350
1,485
34,898
29,709
55
3,221
500
28,153
100
100

15,600

125,445

(1) Includes 4,142 shares allocated under the ESOP and 3,345 shares held in trust in the BayVanguard Bank
401(k) Plan.

ITEMS TO BE VOTED ON BY STOCKHOLDERS
Item 1 — Election of Directors
The Company’s Board of Directors consists of eleven members. However, Edmond B. Nolley,
Jr. will retire at the annual meeting at which point the Board of Directors will be reduced to ten members.
The Board is divided into three classes with three-year staggered terms. The Board of Directors’
nominees for election this year to serve for a three-year term or until their successors have been elected
and qualified are Joseph S. Galli, Kim C. Liddell and Timothy L. Prindle.
Unless you indicate on the proxy card that your shares should not be voted for certain nominees,
the Board of Directors intends that the proxies solicited by it will be voted for the election of the Board’s
nominees. If any nominee is unable to serve, the persons named on the proxy card would vote your
shares to approve the election of any substitute proposed by the Board of Directors. At this time, we
know of no reason why any nominee might be unable to serve.
The Board of Directors recommends a vote “FOR” the election of the nominees.
Information regarding the Board of Directors’ nominees and the directors continuing in office is
provided below. Unless otherwise stated, each individual has held his or her current occupation for the
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last five years. The age indicated in each nominee’s biography is as of December 31, 2020. There are no
family relationships among the directors or executive officers. The indicated period for service as a
director includes service as a director of either Bay Federal Savings and Loan Association or Vanguard
Federal Savings and Loan Association, which merged to form Bay-Vanguard Federal Savings Bank in
April 1996.
Board Nominees for a Term Ending in 2024
Joseph S. Galli is an executive vice president of The Bernstein Companies, which is an owner,
developer, investor and manager of commercial, residential, industrial and hotel properties in the MidAtlantic region of the United States. Within The Bernstein Companies, Mr. Galli is a managing director
of Consortium Capital, which is a series of real estate equity funds that invest in commercial real estate
throughout the Mid-Atlantic. Mr. Galli is also the Chairman of the Government Relations Committee for
the Washington, D.C. chapter of Autism Speaks. Age 57. Director since 2015.
Kim C. Liddell served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Delmarva Bancshares, Inc.
and 1880 Bank before their acquisition by the Company in 2020. Mr. Liddell also serves as the Chairman
of the Board of the Company. Age 60. Director since 2020.
Timothy L. Prindle was elected as the Co-Chief Executive Officer, Co-President and member of
the Board of Directors of Bay-Vanguard M.H.C., BV Financial and BayVanguard Bank in January 2019.
Previously he served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Kopernik Bank since 2012. Age 35.
Director since 2019.
Directors with Terms Ending in 2022
William Streett Baldwin is a director of Ellin & Tucker, Chartered, a business consulting and
certified public accounting firm located in Baltimore, Maryland. Mr. Baldwin is a certified public
accountant. Age 58. Director since 2012.
William B. Crompton, III retired from the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency in 2015 and
has held senior positions in the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, Office of Thrift Supervision
and Federal Home Loan Bank System for over 30 years. Age 67. Director since 2019.
David M. Flair became the Chief Executive Officer of BV Financial and BayVanguard in
October 2013 and was also named President of BV Financial and BayVanguard in November 2014. Mr.
Flair was hired as the Chief Financial Officer of BV Financial and BayVanguard in February 2012 and
served in that role until May 2014. Mr. Flair served as the Chief Financial Officer of Advance Bank in
Baltimore, Maryland, beginning in December 2006 and was also appointed as a director and named the
Acting Chief Executive Officer of Advance Bank before his departure in February 2012. Mr. Flair is a
certified public accountant and was a partner with Anderson Associates LLP and Beard Miller Company
LLP for almost twenty years before joining Advance Bank. Age 57. Director since 2012.
Joshua W. Posnick is Vice President of Development for Mill Creek Residential, a real estate
development and management company, located in Washington, D.C. Age 35. Director since 2019.
Directors with a Term Ending in 2023
Gary T. Amereihn retired from Kopernik Bank in 2019 having served as their Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for 21 years. Mr. Amereihn serves as the Chairman of the
Board of BayVanguard Bank. Age 66. Director since 2019.
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Brian K. McHale is a steamship clerk with International Longshoremen’s Association Local 953
located in Baltimore, Maryland and until 2014 was a state delegate to the Maryland General Assembly.
Age 66. Director since 1987.
Michael L. Snyder is General Counsel for M.T. Laney Company, Inc, an asphalt and paving
contractor located in Eldersburg, Maryland. Previously he served as managing partner from the law firm
of Cody & Farley Attorneys. Age 72. Director since 2019.
Item 2 – Approval of the BV Financial, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan
The Board of Directors has adopted, subject to stockholder and necessary regulatory approvals,
the BV Financial, Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021 Equity Incentive Plan”). The Board of Directors
believes the adoption of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is in the best interests of BV Financial and its
stockholders as a means of providing BV Financial and BayVanguard Bank with the ability to retain,
reward, attract and incentivize employees and directors to promote growth, improve performance and
further align their interests with those of stockholders of BV Financial through the ownership of
additional shares of common stock of BV Financial.
Why We Are Seeking Approval of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan
Many companies with which we compete for directors and employees, including managementlevel employees, are stockholder-owned companies that offer equity compensation as part of their overall
compensation programs. By approving the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, our stockholders will give us the
flexibility we need to continue to attract and retain highly qualified employees and directors by offering
competitive compensation programs linked, in part, to the performance of our common stock. In
addition, the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan will further align the interests of our directors and employees,
including our officers, with the interests of our stockholders by increasing the ownership interests of our
directors and employees in the common stock of BV Financial.
BV Financial also sponsors the BV Financial, Inc. 2017 Stock Option Plan (the “2017 Stock
Option Plan”). As of March 19, 2021, 98,000 shares of common stock remained available for grant as
stock options under the 2017 Stock Option Plan. As of March 19, 2021, 46,950 stock options were
outstanding (with a weighted average exercise price of $8.65 per share and a weighted average remaining
term of 6.75 years). Upon stockholder and regulatory approval of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, no
further stock options will be granted under the 2017 Stock Option Plan. However, any stock options
outstanding at that time under the 2017 Stock Option Plan will remain outstanding and subject to the
terms and conditions of the 2017 Stock Option Plan. BV Financial believes it is in the best interest of the
Company and its stockholders to maintain a plan that allows it to grant stock options, restricted stock and
restricted stock units (not just stock options) as part of the overall compensation programs of the
Company and BayVanguard Bank.
Highlights of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan
•

Share Reserve and Terms Generally Consistent with Banking Regulations and Industry
Standards. In determining the size and terms of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, the
Board of Directors and Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) considered a number
of factors, including: (1) industry practices and (2) applicable banking regulations. In
this regard, the maximum number of shares of common stock available under the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan that may be issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options equals
100,000 shares and the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued
as restricted stock or restricted stock units equals 145,000 shares.
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•

Minimum Vesting Periods for Awards. Unless otherwise determined by the Compensation
Committee, awards will vest at a rate of 20% per year. Unless otherwise determined by
the Compensation Committee, the vesting of awards will accelerate upon death, disability
or an involuntary termination upon a change in control.

•

Limits on Grants to Directors and Employees. The maximum number of shares of
common stock that may be delivered to any single employee pursuant to the exercise of
stock options and pursuant to the award of shares of restricted stock or restricted stock
units under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is 25% of shares reserved for each type of
award. The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be delivered to any
single non-employee director pursuant to the exercise of stock options and pursuant to the
award of shares of restricted stock or restricted stock units under the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan is 5% of each type of award. The maximum number of shares that may
granted to all non-employee directors pursuant to the exercise of stock options and
pursuant to the award of shares of restricted stock or restricted stock units under the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan is 30% of the shares reserved for each type of award.

•

Share Counting. The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan provides that, if an individual forfeits an
option or award or if the period to exercise an option expires, the shares covered by the
option or award will again become available for future grants. Shares withheld to cover
taxes or used to pay the exercise price of stock options will not be available for future
grants.

•

No Repricing. The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan prohibits repricing and the exchange of
underwater options for cash or shares without stockholder approval.

•

No Single-Trigger Vesting of Time-Based Awards. The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan does
not provide for the accelerated vesting of time-based equity awards that are assumed by
an acquiring corporation of BV Financial upon the occurrence of a change in control (i.e.,
no single trigger vesting), without an accompanying involuntary termination of service
(including a termination for good reason).

General
The following information summarizes the material features of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan,
which is qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, which is
attached hereto as Appendix A. In the event of conflict between the terms of this disclosure and the terms
of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, the terms of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan will control.
Subject to permitted adjustments for certain corporate transactions, the 2021 Equity Incentive
Plan authorizes the issuance or delivery to participants of up to 245,000 shares of BV Financial common
stock pursuant to grants of incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock awards and
restricted stock units. Of this number, the maximum number of shares of common stock we may issue
under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan pursuant to the exercise of stock options is 100,000 shares, and the
maximum number of shares of common stock we may issue as restricted stock awards or restricted stock
units is 145,000 shares. Upon stockholder and regulatory approval of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, no
further grants will be made under the 2017 Stock Option Plan.
The Committee will administer the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. The Committee has full and
exclusive power within the limitations set forth in the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan to make all decisions
and determinations regarding: (1) the selection of participants and the granting of awards; (2) establishing
the terms and conditions relating to each award; (3) adopting rules, regulations and guidelines for carrying
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out the purposes of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan; and (4) interpreting the provisions of the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan and award agreements. The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan also permits the Committee to
delegate all or part of its responsibilities and powers to any person or persons selected by it. The
Committee may, subject to the limitations set forth in the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, grant stock options
and awards of restricted stock or restricted stock units to themselves and other members of the Board of
Directors.
Except for accelerating the vesting of awards to avoid the minimum vesting requirements
specified in the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan or accelerating the vesting requirements applicable to an
award as a result of or in connection with a change in control, the Committee has the authority to reduce,
eliminate or accelerate any restrictions or vesting requirements applicable to an award at any time after
the grant of the award or to extend the time period to exercise a stock option, provided the extension
complies with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code.
Eligibility
All employees, directors and service providers of BV Financial and its subsidiaries, including
BayVanguard Bank, are eligible to receive awards under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, except that nonemployees may not receive incentive stock options under the plan. As of March 19, 2021, there were nine
non-employee directors and 99 employees of BV Financial and BayVanguard Bank eligible to receive
awards under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan.
Types of Awards
The Committee may determine the type and terms and conditions of awards under the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan. Awards will be evidenced by award agreements approved by the Committee and
delivered to participants. The award agreements will set forth the terms and conditions of each award.
The Committee may grant incentive and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock awards and
restricted stock units under the plan. Subject to the provisions relating to the prohibition on repricing
stock options, an award under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan may be granted as an alternative to or
replacement of an existing award under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan or any other plan of BV Financial
or its subsidiaries or as the form of payment for grants or rights earned or due under any other
compensation plan or arrangement of BV Financial or its subsidiaries, including without limitation, the
plan of any entity acquired by BV Financial or its subsidiaries.
Stock Options. A stock option gives the recipient or “optionee” the right to purchase shares of
common stock at a specified price for a specified period of time. The exercise price may not be less than
the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. “Fair Market Value” for purposes of the
2021 Equity Incentive Plan means, if the common stock of BV Financial is listed on a securities
exchange, the closing sales price of the common stock or, if the common stock was not traded on a
specific date, then on the immediately preceding date on which sales were reported. If the common stock
is not traded on a securities exchange, the Committee will determine the fair market value in good faith
and on the basis of objective criteria consistent with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code.
Stock Options may not have a term longer than ten years from the date of grant.

Stock options are either “incentive” stock options or “non-qualified” stock options. Incentive
stock options have certain tax advantages and must comply with the requirements of Section 422 of the
Internal Revenue Code. Only employees are eligible to receive incentive stock options. Shares of
common stock purchased upon the exercise of a stock option must be paid for in full at the time of
exercise: (1) either in cash or with stock valued at fair market value as of the day of exercise; (2) by a
“cashless exercise” through a third party; (3) by a net settlement of the stock option using a portion of the
shares obtained on exercise in payment of the exercise price; (4) by personal, certified or cashiers’ check;
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(5) by other property deemed acceptable by the Committee; or (6) by a combination of the foregoing.
Stock options are subject to vesting conditions and restrictions as determined by the Committee.
Restricted Stock. A restricted stock award is a grant of common stock to a participant for no

consideration, or any minimum consideration that may be required by applicable law. Restricted stock
awards under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan will be granted only in whole shares of common stock and
are subject to vesting conditions and other restrictions established by the Committee consistent with the
2021 Equity Incentive Plan. Prior to awards vesting, unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the
recipient of a restricted stock award may exercise voting rights with respect to the common stock subject
to the award. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee, the Company will immediately distribute
dividends paid on unvested awards to participants.
Restricted Stock Units. Restricted stock units are similar to restricted stock awards in that the
value of a restricted stock unit is denominated in shares of common stock. However, unlike a restricted
stock award, no shares of stock are transferred to the participant until certain requirements or conditions
associated with the award are satisfied. The limitation on the number of restricted stock awards available
under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan also applies to restricted stock units. As no shares of common stock

are issued upon the grant of a restricted stock unit, the recipient has no votes with respect to the common stock
associated with the award. The Committee is authorized to grant dividend equivalents with respect to

restricted stock units available under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. A dividend equivalent right confers
on the participant the right to receive payments equal to cash dividends or distributions with respect to all
or a portion of the number of shares of stock subject to the award. Unless otherwise determined by the
Committee, the dividend equivalent right will be paid at the time the award is settled.
Limitations on Awards Under the Equity Incentive Plan
The following limits apply to awards under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan:
•

The maximum number of shares of common stock available for awards under the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan equals 245,000 shares, of which up to 100,000 shares of common
stock may be issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options and 145,000 shares of
common stock may be issued pursuant to restricted stock awards or restricted stock units.

•

The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued to any single
employee pursuant to the exercise of stock options and pursuant to restricted stock
awards or restricted stock units is 25,000 shares and 36,250 shares, respectively (all of
which may be granted in any one calendar year). These maximum amounts represent
25% of the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to
the exercise of stock options and 25% of the number of shares of common stock that may
be issued pursuant to restricted stock awards or restricted stock units.

•

The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued to any single nonemployee director pursuant to the exercise of stock options and the issuance of restricted
stock awards or restricted stock units is 5,000 shares and 7,250 shares, respectively (all of
which may be granted in any one calendar year). These maximum amounts represent 5%
of the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be delivered pursuant to
the exercise of stock options and 5% of the maximum number of shares of common stock
that may be issued pursuant to restricted stock awards or restricted stock units. The
Committee may, subject to these limitations and any other applicable limitations set forth
in the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, grant stock options and awards of restricted stock or
restricted stock units to themselves and other members of the Board of Directors.
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•

The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued to all non-employee
directors, in the aggregate, pursuant to the exercise of stock options and the issuance of
restricted stock awards or restricted stock units is 30,000 shares and 43,500 shares,
respectively (all of which may be granted in any one calendar year). These maximum
amounts represent 30% of the maximum number of shares of common stock that may be
issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options and 30% of the maximum number of
shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to restricted stock awards or
restricted stock units.

In the event of a corporate transaction involving the stock of BV Financial (including, without
limitation, any stock dividend, stock split or other special and non-recurring dividend or distribution,
recapitalization, reorganization, merger, consolidation, spin-off, combination or exchange of shares), the
Committee will, in an equitable manner, adjust the number and kind of securities available for grants of
stock options, restricted stock awards or restricted stock units, the number and kind of securities that may
be delivered or deliverable with respect to outstanding stock options, restricted stock awards and
restricted stock units, and the exercise price of stock options.
In addition, the Committee is authorized to make certain other adjustments to the terms and
conditions of stock options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units consistent with the terms of
the plan.
The closing sale price of BV Financial’s common stock as quoted on the over-the-counter market
on March 22, 2021 (the latest practicable date before the printing of this proxy statement) was $20.00.
Prohibition Against Repricing of Options. The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan provides that
neither the Committee nor the Board of Directors may make any adjustment or amendment to the plan or
an award that reduces or would have the effect of reducing the exercise price of a previously granted
stock option.
Prohibition on Transfer. Generally, all awards, except non-qualified stock options, granted
under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan are not transferable, except by will or in accordance with the laws
of intestate succession. Awards may be transferable pursuant to a qualified domestic relations order. At
the Committee’s sole discretion, an individual may transfer non-qualified stock options for valid estate
planning purposes in a manner consistent with the Internal Revenue Code and federal securities laws.
During the life of the participant, only the participant may exercise stock options. However, a participant
may designate a beneficiary to exercise stock options or receive any rights that may exist upon the
participant’s death with respect to awards granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan.

Performance Measures
The Committee may use performance measures for vesting purposes with respect to awards
granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. The performance measures may include one or more of the
following: book value or tangible book value per share; basic earnings per share (e.g., earnings before
interest and taxes, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; or earnings per share);
basic cash earnings per share; diluted earnings per share; return on assets; cash return on assets; return on
equity; cash return on equity; return on tangible equity; cash return on tangible equity; net income or net
income before taxes; net interest income; non-interest income; non-interest expense to average assets
ratio; cash general and administrative expense to average assets ratio; efficiency ratio; cash efficiency
ratio; operating efficiency ratio; financial return ratios; core earnings, capital; increase in revenue; total
stockholder return; total shareholder return including special dividends; net operating income, operating
income; net interest margin or net interest rate spread; cash flow; cash earnings; stock price; assets,
growth in assets, loans or deposits, asset quality metrics, charge-offs, loan reserves, non-performing assets
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and loans, growth of loans, loan production volume; non-performing asset ratio; regulatory compliance or
safety and soundness; achievement of balance sheet or income statement objectives and strategic business
objectives, or any combination of these or other measures.
The Committee may base the measures on the performance of BV Financial as a whole or of any
one or more subsidiaries or business units and may measure performance relative to a peer group, an
index or a business plan. Performance measures may be considered as absolute measures or changes in
measures. In establishing performance measures, the Committee may provide for the inclusion or
exclusion of certain items.
Vesting of Awards
The Committee will specify the vesting schedule or conditions of each award. Unless the
Committee specifies a different vesting schedule at the time of grant, awards under the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan, other than performance awards, will be granted with a vesting rate not exceeding 20% per
year, with the initial installment vesting no earlier than the one-year anniversary of the date of grant. If
the vesting of an award under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is conditioned on the completion of a
specified period of service with BV Financial or its subsidiaries, without the achievement of performance
measures or objectives, then the required period of service for full vesting will be determined by the
Committee and evidenced in an award agreement. Unless otherwise determined by the Committee,
vesting will accelerate in the event of death, disability, or upon an involuntary termination of employment
or service at or following a change in control or, subject to the foregoing requirements and in a manner
consistent with the plan, at the discretion of the Committee.
Change in Control
Unless otherwise provided in an award agreement, at the time of an involuntary termination of
employment or service at or following a change in control, all stock options then held by the participant
will become fully vested and exercisable (subject to the expiration provisions otherwise applicable to the
stock option). All stock options may be exercised for a period of one year following the participant’s
involuntary termination, provided, however, that no stock option will be eligible for treatment as an
incentive stock option if the individual exercises the stock option more than three months following
involuntary termination of employment. At the time of an involuntary termination of employment or
service at or following a change in control, all awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units will
immediately become fully vested. In the event of a change in control, any performance measures will be
deemed satisfied at the “target” level as of the date of the change in control and vest pro-rata based on the
portion of the performance period elapsed at the date of the change in control, unless data supports and
the Committee certifies that the performance measures have been achieved at a level higher than the
target level as of the effective date of the change in control, in which case, the performance award will
vest at the higher level.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an acquiring corporation of BV Financial or BayVanguard
Bank fails to assume the awards granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan or fails to convert the
awards to awards for the acquiring corporation’s stock options, restricted stock or restricted stock units,
the awards will vest immediately at the effective time of the change in control.
Amendment and Termination
The Board of Directors may, at any time, amend or terminate the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan or
any award granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, provided that, except as provided in the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan , no amendment or termination may adversely impair the rights of a participant or
beneficiary under an award without the participant’s (or the affected beneficiary’s) written consent. The
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Board of Directors may not amend the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan to materially increase the benefits
accruing to participants under the plan, materially increase the aggregate number of securities that may be
issued under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (other than as provided in the plan), or materially modify the
requirements for participation in the plan, without approval of stockholders. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, the Committee may amend the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan or any award agreement, to take
effect retroactively or otherwise, to conform the plan or an award agreement to current or future law or to
avoid an accounting treatment resulting from an accounting pronouncement or interpretation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission or Financial Accounting Standards Board subsequent to the
adoption of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, or the making of the award affected thereby, which, in the
sole discretion of the Committee, may materially and adversely affect the financial condition or results of
operations of BV Financial.
Duration of Plan
The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan will become effective upon approval by the stockholders at the
annual stockholder meeting and by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the “FRB”).
The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan will remain in effect as long as any award under it is outstanding;
however, no awards may be granted under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan on or after the ten-year
anniversary of the effective date of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. As discussed above, at any time, the
Board of Directors may terminate the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan.
Federal Income Tax Considerations
The following is a summary of the current federal income tax consequences with respect to
awards under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan:
Non-Qualified Stock Options. The grant of a non-qualified stock option will not result in

taxable income to the participant. Except as described below, the participant will recognize ordinary
income at the time of exercise in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares
acquired over the exercise price for those shares, and BV Financial will be entitled to a corresponding
deduction for tax purposes. Gains or losses realized by the individual upon disposition of the acquired
shares will be treated as capital gains and losses, with the cost basis in the shares equal to the fair market
value of the shares at the time of exercise.
Incentive Stock Options. The grant of an incentive stock option will not result in taxable income
to the participant. The exercise of an incentive stock option also will not result in taxable income to the
participant, provided the participant was, without a break in service, an employee of BV Financial or a
subsidiary during the period beginning on the date of the grant of the option and ending on the date three
months prior to the date of exercise (one year prior to the date of exercise if the participant becomes
disabled, as that term is defined in the Internal Revenue Code).

The excess of the fair market value of the shares at the time of the exercise of an incentive stock
option over the exercise price is an adjustment that is included in the calculation of the participant’s
alternative minimum taxable income for the tax year in which the incentive stock option is exercised. For
purposes of determining the participant’s alternative minimum tax liability for the year of disposition of
the shares acquired pursuant to the incentive stock option exercise, the participant will have a basis in
those shares equal to the fair market value of the shares at the time of exercise.
If the participant does not sell or otherwise dispose of the shares within two years from the date of
the grant of the incentive stock option or within one year after the exercise of the stock option, then, upon
disposition of the acquired shares, any amount realized in excess of the exercise price will be taxed as a
capital gain. A capital loss will be recognized to the extent that the amount realized is less than the
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exercise price. If these holding period requirements are not met, the participant will generally recognize
ordinary income at the time of the disposition of the shares, equal to the lesser of: (1) the excess of the fair
market value of the shares on the date of exercise over the exercise price; or (2) the excess, if any, of the
amount realized upon disposition of the shares over the exercise price, and BV Financial will be entitled
to a corresponding deduction. If the amount realized exceeds the value of the shares on the date of
exercise, any additional amount will be a capital gain. If the amount realized is less than the exercise
price, the participant will recognize no income, and a capital loss will be recognized equal to the excess of
the exercise price over the amount realized upon the disposition of the shares.
Restricted Stock. A participant will not realize taxable income at the time of the grant of

restricted stock, provided that the stock subject to the award is not delivered at the time of grant, or if the
stock is delivered, it is subject to restrictions that constitute a “substantial risk of forfeiture” for federal
income tax purposes. Upon the later of delivery or vesting of shares subject to an award, the holder will
recognize ordinary income equal to the then fair market value of those shares and BV Financial will be
entitled to a corresponding deduction for tax purposes. Gains or losses realized by the participant upon
disposition of the shares will be treated as capital gains and losses, with the basis in the shares equal to the
fair market value of the shares at the time of delivery or vesting. Dividends paid to the holder during the
restriction period, if so provided, will also be compensation income to the participant, and BV Financial
will be entitled to a corresponding deduction for tax purposes. A participant who makes an election under
Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code will include the full fair market value of the restricted stock
award in taxable income in the year of grant at the grant date fair market value.
Restricted Stock Unit. A participant who has been granted a restricted stock unit will not realize
taxable income as long as the award remains in the form of a restricted stock unit. When the restricted
stock unit is extinguished and the award is settled, the tax consequences for restricted stock awards (see
paragraph above) will be recognized. Since no stock is transferred to the participant on the grant date of
the restricted stock unit, an election to have the restricted stock unit taxed at the grant date cannot be
made since Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code requires a transfer of stock.
Withholding of Taxes. BV Financial may withhold amounts from participants to satisfy tax
withholding requirements. Except as otherwise provided by the Committee, participants may have shares
withheld from awards to satisfy the tax withholding requirements, provided the withholding does not
trigger adverse accounting consequences.
Change in Control. Any acceleration of the vesting or payment of awards under the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan in the event of a change in control or termination of employment or service following a
change in control may cause part or all of the consideration involved to be treated as an “excess parachute
payment” under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code, which may subject the participant to a 20%
excise tax and preclude a deduction by BV Financial with respect to the awards.
Deduction Limits. Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code may limit our ability to deduct
for tax purposes compensation in excess of $1.0 million per year for each of our principal executive
officer, principal financial officer and three additional highest compensated officers during any taxable
year of BV Financial after December 31, 2016. Compensation resulting from awards under the 2021
Equity Incentive Plan will be counted toward the $1.0 million limit.
Tax Advice. The preceding discussion is based on federal tax laws and regulations currently in
effect, which are subject to change, and the discussion does not purport to be a complete description of
the federal income tax aspects of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. A participant may also be subject to
state and local taxes in connection with the grant of awards under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan. BV
Financial suggests participants consult with their individual tax advisors to determine the applicability of
the tax rules to the awards granted to them.
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Accounting Treatment
Under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, BV
Financial is required to recognize compensation expense on its income statement over the requisite
service period or performance period based on the grant date fair value of stock options and other equitybased compensation (such as restricted stock).
Awards to be Granted
The Board of Directors has adopted the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, contingent upon stockholder
and regulatory approval. If the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan is approved by stockholders and the FRB, the
Committee may meet promptly after stockholder approval or at a later time to determine the specific
terms of the awards, including the allocation of awards to executive officers, employees, and nonemployee directors. At the present time, no specific determination has been made as to the grant or
allocation of any awards. However, certain previous grants of restricted stock units that may be settled in
cash or shares of stock (upon approval of the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan) will be settled in shares of
common stock in accordance with the terms of the grants. Upon settling those awards, the shares will be
taken from the share reserve under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan for restricted stock and restricted stock
units.
Clawback Policy
The 2021 Equity Incentive Plan provides that if BV Financial is required to prepare an accounting
restatement due to its material noncompliance, as a result of misconduct, with any financial reporting
requirement under the federal securities laws, any participant who is subject to automatic forfeiture under
Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or who, if applicable, is subject to clawback under
Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Act must reimburse BV Financial with the required amount of any
payment in settlement of an award earned or accrued during the 12-month period following the first
public issuance or filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission (whichever first occurred) of the
financial document embodying such financial reporting requirement. In addition, awards granted under
the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan are subject to any clawback policy adopted by the Board of Directors.
Required Vote and Recommendation of the Board of Directors
To approve the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan, the proposal must receive the affirmative vote of (1) a
majority of the votes represented at the annual meeting and entitled to vote on the matter, as well as (2) a
majority of the votes cast by stockholders other than Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote “FOR” the approval of the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan.
Item 3 – Ratification of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Rowles & Company, LLP was the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for
the 2020 fiscal year. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has appointed Rowles & Company,
LLP to be the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm for the 2021 fiscal year, subject
to ratification by stockholders. A representative of Rowles & Company, LLP is expected to be present at
the annual meeting to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders and will have the opportunity to
make a statement should he or she desire to do so.
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If the ratification of the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm is not
approved by a majority of the votes represented at the annual meeting and entitled to vote, the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors may consider other independent registered public accounting firms.
The Board of Directors recommends a vote “FOR” the ratification of the appointment of
Rowles & Company, LLP as independent registered public accounting firm for the Company for
the 2021 fiscal year.
SUBMISSION OF BUSINESS PROPOSALS
AND STOCKHOLDER NOMINATIONS
The Company’s Bylaws provide that for a stockholder to make nominations for the election of
directors or proposals for business to be brought before a meeting of stockholders, a stockholder must
deliver written notice of such nominations and/or proposals to the Corporate Secretary not less than 30
days before the date of the meeting; provided that if less than 40 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of
the meeting is given or made to stockholders, such notice must be delivered not later than the close of
business on the tenth day following the day on which notice of the meeting was mailed to stockholders or
such public disclosure was made.
MISCELLANEOUS
The Company will pay the cost of this proxy solicitation. The Company will reimburse
brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them
in sending proxy materials to the beneficial owners of the Company. In addition to soliciting proxies by
mail, directors, officers and regular employees of the Company may solicit proxies personally or by
telephone. None of these persons will receive additional compensation for these activities.
If you and others who share your address own your shares in “street name,” your broker or other
holder of record may be sending only one annual report and proxy statement to your address. This
practice, known as “householding,” is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. However, if a
stockholder residing at such an address wishes to receive a separate annual report or proxy statement in
the future, he or she should contact the broker or other holder of record. If you own your shares in “street
name” and are receiving multiple copies of our annual report and proxy statement, you can request
householding by contacting your broker or other holder of record.
Whether or not you plan to attend the annual meeting, please vote by marking, signing, dating
and promptly returning the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed envelope.
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EXHIBIT A
BV FINANCIAL, INC.
2021 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
ARTICLE 1 — GENERAL
Section 1.1 Purpose, Effective Date and Term. The purpose of the BV Financial, Inc. 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) is to promote the long-term financial success of BV Financial, Inc. (the
“Company”), and its Subsidiaries, including BayVanguard Bank (the “Bank”), by providing a means to
attract, retain and reward individuals who contribute to that success and to further align their interests with
those of the Company’s stockholders through the ownership of additional shares of common stock of the
Company and/or through compensation tied to the value of the Company’s common stock. The “Effective
Date” of the Plan shall be the date on which the Plan satisfies the applicable stockholder approval
requirements; subject to any regulatory approvals, including the approval of the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System. The Plan shall remain in effect as long as any Awards are outstanding; provided,
however, that no Awards may be granted under the Plan after the day immediately prior to the ten-year
anniversary date of the Effective Date. Upon stockholder and any required regulatory approvals of this
Plan, no further awards shall be granted under the BV Financial, Inc. 2017 Stock Option Plan (the "2017
Stock Option Plan"), which shall remain in existence solely for the purpose of administering outstanding
grants.
Section 1.2 Administration. The Plan shall be administered by the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors (the “Committee”) in accordance with Section 5.1.
Section 1.3 Participation. Each individual who is granted and holds an Award in accordance with the
terms of the Plan shall be a Participant in the Plan (a “Participant”). The grant of Awards shall be limited
to Employees, Directors and service providers of the Company or any Subsidiary.
Section 1.4 Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Plan are defined in Article 8 and elsewhere in
this Plan.
ARTICLE 2 — AWARDS
Section 2.1 General. Any Award under the Plan may be granted singularly or in combination with
another Award or other Awards. Each Award under the Plan shall be subject to the terms and conditions of
the Plan and any additional terms, conditions, limitations and restrictions as the Committee shall provide
with respect to the Award as evidenced in an Award Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the
terms of an Award Agreement and the Plan, the terms of the Plan will control. Subject to the provisions of
Section 2.2(d), an Award may be granted as an alternative to or replacement of an existing Award under
the Plan or any other plan of the Company or any Subsidiary or as the form of payment for grants or rights
earned or due under any other compensation plan or arrangement of the Company or any Subsidiary,
including without limitation, the plan of any entity acquired by the Company or any Subsidiary. The types
of Awards that may be granted under the Plan include Stock Options, Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock
Units and any Award may be granted as a Performance Award.
Section 2.2 Stock Options. A Stock Option is a grant that represents the right to purchase shares of
Stock at an established Exercise Price.
(a)
Grant of Stock Options. Each Stock Option shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement
that specifies: (i) the number of shares of Stock covered by the Stock Option; (ii) the date of grant of the
Stock Option and the Exercise Price; (iii) the vesting period or conditions to vesting or exercisability
(whether time- and/or performance-based); and (iv) any other terms and conditions not inconsistent with
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the Plan, including the effect of termination of a Participant’s employment or Service, as the Committee
may, in its discretion, prescribe. Any Stock Option may be either an Incentive Stock Option that is intended
to satisfy the requirements applicable to an “Incentive Stock Option” described in Code Section 422(b), or
a Non-Qualified Option that is not intended to be an ISO; provided, however, that no ISOs may be granted:
(i) after the day immediately prior to the ten-year anniversary of the Effective Date or the date on which
the Plan is approved by the Board of Directors, whichever is earlier; or (ii) to a non-Employee. Unless
otherwise specifically provided by its terms, any Stock Option granted to an Employee under this Plan shall
be an ISO to the maximum extent permitted. Any ISO granted under this Plan that does not qualify as an
ISO for any reason (whether at the time of grant or as the result of a subsequent event) shall be deemed to
be a Non-Qualified Option. In addition, any ISO granted under this Plan may be unilaterally modified by
the Committee to disqualify it from ISO treatment, so that it becomes a Non-Qualified Option; provided,
however, that any such modification shall be ineffective if it causes the Option to be subject to Code
Section 409A (unless, as modified, the Option complies with Code Section 409A).
(b)
Other Terms and Conditions. A Stock Option shall be exercisable in accordance with its
terms and conditions and during the periods established by the Committee. In no event, however, shall a
Stock Option expire later than ten (10) years after the date of its grant (or five (5) years with respect to ISOs
granted to a 10% Stockholder). The Exercise Price of each Stock Option shall not be less than 100% of the
Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on the date of grant (or, if greater, the par value of a share of Stock);
provided, however, that the Exercise Price of an ISO shall not be less than 110% of Fair Market Value of a
share of Stock on the date of grant if an ISO is granted to a 10% Stockholder; provided further, that the
Exercise Price may be higher or lower in the case of Stock Options granted or exchanged in replacement
of existing Awards held by an employee or director of an acquired entity. The payment of the Exercise
Price shall be by cash or, subject to limitations imposed by applicable law, by any other means as the
Committee may from time to time permit, including: (i) by tendering, either actually or constructively by
attestation, shares of Stock valued at Fair Market Value as of the day of exercise; (ii) by irrevocably
authorizing a third party, acceptable to the Committee, to sell shares of Stock (or a sufficient portion of the
shares) acquired upon exercise of the Stock Option and to remit to the Company a sufficient portion of the
sale proceeds to pay the entire Exercise Price and any tax withholding resulting from the exercise; (iii) by
a net settlement of the Stock Option, using a portion of the shares of Stock obtained on exercise in payment
of the Exercise Price (and if applicable, any tax withholding); (iv) by personal, certified or cashier’s check;
(v) by other property deemed acceptable by the Committee; or (vi) by any combination thereof. The total
number of shares of Stock that may be acquired upon the exercise of a Stock Option shall be rounded down
to the nearest whole share, with cash-in-lieu paid by the Company, at its discretion, for the value of any
fractional share.
(c)
Prohibition of Cash Buy-Outs of Underwater Stock Options. Under no circumstances
will any underwater Stock Option (i.e., a Stock Option with an Exercise Price as of an applicable date that
is greater than the Fair Market Value of Stock as of the same date) that was granted under the Plan be
bought back by the Company without stockholder approval.
(d)
Prohibition Against Repricing. Except for adjustments pursuant to Section 3.4, and
reductions of the Exercise Price approved by the Company’s stockholders, neither the Committee nor the
Board of Directors shall have the right or authority to make any adjustment or amendment that reduces or
would have the effect of reducing the Exercise Price of a Stock Option previously granted under the Plan,
whether through amendment, cancellation (including cancellation in exchange for a cash payment in excess
of the Award’s in-the-money value or in exchange for Options or other Awards) or replacement grants, or
other means.
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Section 2.3 Restricted Stock.
(a)
Grant of Restricted Stock. A Restricted Stock Award is a grant of a share of Stock for no
consideration or such minimum consideration as may be required by applicable law, subject to a vesting
schedule or the satisfaction of market conditions or performance conditions. Each Restricted Stock Award
shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that specifies (i) the number of shares of Stock covered by the
Restricted Stock Award; (ii) the date of grant of the Restricted Stock Award; (iii) the vesting period
(whether time- and/or performance-based); and (iv) any other terms and conditions not inconsistent with
the Plan, including the effect of termination of a Participant’s employment or Service. All Restricted Stock
Awards shall be in the form of issued and outstanding shares of Stock that, at the discretion of the
Committee, shall either be (x) registered in the name of the Participant and held by or on behalf of the
Company, together with a stock power executed by the Participant in favor of the Company, pending the
vesting or forfeiture of the Restricted Stock; or (y) registered in the name of, and delivered to, the
Participant. In any event, the certificates evidencing the Restricted Stock Award shall at all times prior to
the applicable vesting date bear the following legend:
The Stock evidenced hereby is subject to the terms of an Award Agreement with BV
Financial, Inc., dated [date], made pursuant to the terms of the BV Financial, Inc. 2021
Equity Incentive Plan, copies of which are on file at the executive offices of BV Financial,
Inc., and may not be sold, encumbered, hypothecated or otherwise transferred except in
accordance with the terms of the Plan and Award Agreement,
or other restrictive legend as the Committee, in its discretion, may specify. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
the Company may in its sole discretion issue Restricted Stock in any other approved format
(e.g., electronically or through book-entry format) in order to facilitate the paperless transfer of the Award.
In the event Restricted Stock is not issued in certificate form, the Company and its transfer agent shall
maintain appropriate bookkeeping entries that evidence Participants’ ownership of the Awards. Restricted
Stock that is not issued in certificate form shall be subject to the same terms and conditions of the Plan as
certificated shares, including the restrictions on transferability and the provision of a stock power executed
by the Participant in favor of the Company, until the satisfaction of the conditions to which the Restricted
Stock Award is subject.
(b)
Terms and Conditions. Each Restricted Stock Award shall be subject to the following
terms and conditions:
(i)
Dividends. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, cash dividends or
distributions, if any, declared and paid with respect to shares of Stock subject to a Restricted Stock
Award shall be immediately distributed to the Participant No cash dividends shall be paid with
respect to a Restricted Stock Awards subject to performance-based vesting conditions unless and
until the Participant vests in the Restricted Stock Award. Upon the vesting of Restricted Stock
granted as a Performance Award, any cash dividends declared but not paid to the Participant during
the vesting period shall be paid, without interest, within thirty (30) days following the vesting date.
Any stock dividends declared on shares of Stock subject to a Restricted Stock Award, whether or
not performance-based, shall be subject to the same restrictions and shall vest at the same time as
the shares of Restricted Stock from which the dividends were derived. If the distribution of
dividends are delayed, the Committee shall cause the dividend (and any earnings thereon) to be
distributed to the Participant no later than two and one-half months following the date on which
the Restricted Stock vests.
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(ii)
Voting Rights. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, a Participant shall
have voting rights related to unvested, non-forfeited Restricted Stock and the voting rights may be
exercised by the Participant.
(iii)
Tender Offers and Merger Elections. Each Participant to whom a Restricted
Stock Award is granted shall have the right to respond, or to direct the response, with respect to the
related shares of Restricted Stock, to any tender offer, exchange offer, cash/stock merger
consideration election or other offer made to, or elections made by, the holders of shares of Stock.
The direction for any of the shares of Restricted Stock shall be given by proxy or ballot (if the
Participant is the beneficial owner of the shares of Restricted Stock for voting purposes) or by
completing and filing, with the inspector of elections, the trustee or the other person who shall be
independent of the Company, as the Committee shall designate (if the Participant is not the a
beneficial owner), a written direction in the form and manner prescribed by the Committee. If no
direction is given, then the shares of Restricted Stock shall not be tendered.
Section 2.4 Restricted Stock Units.
(a)
Grant of Restricted Stock Unit Awards. A Restricted Stock Unit is an Award
denominated in shares of Stock that is similar to a Restricted Stock Award except no shares of Stock are
actually awarded on the date of grant. A Restricted Stock Unit is subject to a vesting schedule or the
satisfaction of market conditions or performance conditions and shall be settled in shares of Stock, provided,
however, that in the sole discretion of the Committee, determined at the time of settlement, a Restricted
Stock Unit may be settled in cash based on the Fair Market Value of a share of the Stock multiplied by the
number of Restricted Stock Units being settled, or a combination of shares of Stock and cash. Each
Restricted Stock Unit shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that specifies (i) the number of Restricted
Stock Units covered by the Award; (ii) the date of grant of the Restricted Stock Units; (iii) the Restriction
Period and the vesting period (whether time- and/or performance-based); (iv) any other terms and
conditions not inconsistent with the Plan, including the effect of termination of a Participant’s employment
or Service.
(b)
Other Terms and Conditions.
following terms and conditions:

Each Restricted Stock Unit Award shall be subject to the

(i)
The Committee may impose any other conditions and/or restrictions on any
Restricted Stock Unit Award as it may deem advisable, including, without limitation, a requirement
that Participants pay a stipulated purchase price for each Restricted Stock Unit, time-based
restrictions and/or vesting following the attainment of performance measures, restrictions under
applicable laws or under the requirements of any Exchange or market upon which shares of Stock
may be listed, and/or holding requirements or sale restrictions placed by the Company upon vesting
of Restricted Stock Units.
(ii)
The conditions for grant or vesting and the other provisions of Restricted Stock
Units (including without limitation any applicable performance measures) need not be the same
with respect to each recipient. An Award of Restricted Stock Units shall be settled as and when the
Restricted Stock Units vest or, in the case of Restricted Stock Units subject to performance
measures, after the Committee has determined that the performance goals have been satisfied.
(iii)
Subject to the provisions of the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement, during
the period, if any, set by the Committee, commencing with the date of grant of the Restricted Stock
Unit for which the Participant’s continued Service is required (the “Restriction Period”), and until
the later of (A) the expiration of the Restriction Period or (B) the date the applicable performance
A-4

measures (if any) are satisfied, the Participant shall not be permitted to sell, assign, transfer, pledge
or otherwise encumber Restricted Stock Units.
(iv)
A Participant shall have no voting rights with respect to any Restricted Stock Units.
No dividends shall be paid on Restricted Stock Units. In the sole discretion of the Committee,
exercised at the time of grant, Dividend Equivalent Rights may be assigned to Restricted Stock
Units. A Dividend Equivalent Right, if any, shall be paid at the same time as the shares of Stock or
cash subject to the Restricted Stock Unit are distributed to the Participant and is otherwise subject
to the same rights and restrictions as the underlying Restricted Stock Unit.
Section 2.5 Vesting of Awards. Unless the Committee specifies a different vesting schedule at the time
of grant, Awards under the Plan (other than Performance Awards) shall be granted with a vesting rate of
twenty percent (20%) per year, with the initial installment vesting no earlier than the one-year anniversary
of the date of grant, unless accelerated due to death, Disability, or an Involuntary Termination at or
following a Change in Control. If the right to become vested in an Award (including the right to exercise
a Stock Option) is conditioned on the completion of a specified period of Service, without achievement of
performance measures or other performance objectives being required as a condition of vesting, and without
it being granted in lieu of, or in exchange for, other compensation, then the required period of Service for
full vesting shall be evidenced in an Award Agreement (subject to acceleration of vesting, to the extent
permitted by the Plan, by the Committee (subject to the limitations set forth in this Section 2.5) or as set
forth in the Award Agreement, in the event of the Participant’s death, Disability or an Involuntary
Termination at or following a Change in Control).
Section 2.6 Deferred Compensation. If any Award would be considered “deferred compensation” as
defined under Code Section 409A (“Deferred Compensation”), the Committee reserves the absolute right
(including the right to delegate such right) to unilaterally amend the Plan or the Award Agreement, without
the consent of the Participant, to maintain the exemption from, or to comply with, Code Section 409A. Any
amendment by the Committee to the Plan or an Award Agreement pursuant to this Section 2.6 shall
maintain, to the extent practicable, the original intent of the applicable provision without violating Code
Section 409A. A Participant’s acceptance of any Award under the Plan constitutes acknowledgement and
consent to the rights of the Committee, without further consideration or action. Any discretionary authority
retained by the Committee pursuant to the terms of this Plan or pursuant to an Award Agreement shall not
apply to an Award that is determined to constitute Deferred Compensation, if the discretionary authority
would contravene Code Section 409A.
Section 2.7 Effect of Termination of Service on Awards. The Committee shall establish the effect of
a Termination of Service on the continuation of rights and benefits available under an Award and, in so
doing, may make distinctions based upon, among other things, the reason(s) for the Termination of Service
and type of Award. Unless otherwise specified by the Committee and set forth in an Award Agreement
between the Company and/or a Subsidiary and the Participant or as set forth in an employment or severance
agreement entered into by and between the Company and/or a Subsidiary and the Participant, the following
provisions shall apply to each Award granted under this Plan:
(a)
Upon a Participant’s Termination of Service for any reason other than due to Disability,
death, Retirement or for Cause, Stock Options shall be exercisable only as to those shares of Stock that
were immediately exercisable by the Participant at the date of termination, and the Stock Options may be
exercised only for a period of three (3) months following termination and any Restricted Stock Award or
Restricted Stock Unit that had not vested as of the date of Termination of Service shall expire and be
forfeited.
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(b)
In the event of a Termination of Service for Cause, all Stock Options granted to a
Participant that have not been exercised (whether or not vested) and all Restricted Stock Awards and
Restricted Stock Units granted to a Participant that have not vested shall expire and be forfeited.
(c)
Upon Termination of Service for reason of Disability or death, any Service-based Stock
Options shall be exercisable as to all shares of Stock subject to an outstanding Award, whether or not then
exercisable, and all Service-based Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units shall vest as to all
shares subject to an outstanding Award, whether or not otherwise immediately vested, at the date of
Termination of Service. Upon Termination of Service for reason of Disability or death, any Awards that
vest based on the achievement of performance targets shall vest, pro-rata, by multiplying (i) the number of
Awards that would be obtained based on achievement at target (or if actual achievement of the performance
measures is greater than the target level, at the actual achievement level) as of the date of Disability or
death, by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of whole months the Participant was in
Service during the performance period and the denominator of which is the number of months in the
performance period. Stock Options may be exercised for a period of one (1) year following a Termination
of Service due to death or Disability; provided, however, that no Stock Option shall be eligible for treatment
as an ISO in the event the Stock Option is exercised more than one (1) year following Termination of
Service due to Disability and provided, further, in order to obtain ISO treatment for Stock Options exercised
by heirs or devisees of an optionee, the optionee’s death must have occurred while employed or within three
(3) months of Termination of Service. In the event of Termination of Service due to Retirement, a
Participant’s vested Stock Options shall be exercisable for one (1) year following Termination of Service.
No Stock Option shall be eligible for treatment as an ISO in the event the Stock Option is exercised more
than three (3) months following Termination of Service due to Retirement and any Stock Option, Restricted
Stock Award or Restricted Stock Unit that has not vested as of the date of Termination of Service shall
expire and be forfeited.
(d)
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Stock Option shall be exercisable
beyond the last day of the original term of the Stock Option.
(e)
Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 2.7, the effect of a Change in Control on the
vesting/exercisability of Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units is as set forth
in Article 4.
(f)
For purposes of the Plan, the term “Retirement” means, unless otherwise specified in an
Award Agreement, retirement from employment or Service on or after the attainment of age 65. An
Employee who also serves as a Director shall not be deemed to have terminated due to Retirement for
purposes of vesting of Awards and exercise of Stock Options until both Service as an Employee and Service
as a Director has ceased. A non-employee Director will be deemed to have terminated due to Retirement
under the provisions of this Plan only if the non-employee Director has terminated Service on the board(s)
of directors of the Company and any Subsidiary or affiliate in accordance with an applicable Company
policy, following the provision of written notice to the board(s) of directors of the non-employee Director’s
intention to retire. A non-employee Director who continues in Service as a director emeritus or advisory
director shall be deemed to be in Service of the Company or a Subsidiary for purposes of vesting of Awards
and exercise of Stock Options.
Section 2.8. Holding Period for Vested Awards. As a condition of receipt of an Award, the Award
Agreement may require a Participant to agree to hold a vested Award or shares of Stock received upon
exercise of a Stock Option for a period of time specified in the Award Agreement. The foregoing limitation
shall not apply to the extent that an Award vests due to death, Disability or an Involuntary Termination at
or following a Change in Control, or to the extent that (i) a Participant directs the Company to withhold or
the Company elects to withhold shares of Stock with respect to the vesting or exercise, or, in lieu thereof,
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to retain, or to sell without notice, a sufficient number of shares of Stock to cover the amount required to
be withheld or (ii) a Participant exercises a Stock Option by a net settlement, and in the case of (i) and
(ii) herein, only to the extent of the shares are withheld for tax purposes or for purposes of the net settlement.
ARTICLE 3 — SHARES SUBJECT TO PLAN
Section 3.1 Available Shares. The shares of Stock with respect to which Awards may be made under
the Plan shall be shares currently authorized but unissued, currently held or, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, subsequently acquired by the Company, including shares purchased in the open market or
in private transactions.
Section 3.2 Share Limitations.
(a)
Share Reserve. Subject to the following provisions of this Section 3.2, the maximum
number of shares of Stock that may be delivered to Participants and their beneficiaries under the Plan shall
be equal to 245,000 shares of Stock. The maximum number of shares of Stock that may be delivered
pursuant to the exercise of Stock Options (all of which may be granted as ISOs) is 100,000 shares of Stock.
The maximum number of shares of Stock that may be issued as Restricted Stock Awards is 145,000 shares
of Stock. The aggregate number of shares of Stock available for grant under this Plan and the number of
shares of Stock subject to outstanding Awards shall be subject to adjustment as provided in Section 3.4. As
of the Effective Date, no further grants will be made under the 2017 Stock Option Plan.
(b)
Computation of Shares Available. For purposes of this Section 3.2 and in connection with
the granting of a Stock Option, Restricted Stock or a Restricted Stock Unit, the number of shares of Stock
available for the grant of additional Stock Options, Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units shall be
reduced by the number of shares of Stock previously granted, subject to the following. To the extent any
shares of Stock covered by an Award (including Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units) under
the Plan are not delivered to a Participant or beneficiary for any reason, including because the Award is
forfeited or canceled or because a Stock Option is not exercised, then the shares shall not be deemed to
have been delivered for purposes of determining the maximum number of shares of Stock available for
delivery under the Plan. To the extent: (i) a Stock Option is exercised by using an actual or constructive
exchange of shares of Stock to pay the Exercise Price; (ii) shares of Stock are withheld to satisfy
withholding taxes upon exercise or vesting of an Award granted hereunder; or (iii) shares are withheld to
satisfy the Exercise Price of Stock Options in a net settlement of Stock Options, then the number of shares
of Stock available shall be reduced by the gross number of Stock Options exercised or Awards vested rather
than by the net number of shares of Stock issued.
Section 3.3 Limitations on Grants to Individuals.
(a)

Employee Awards.

(i)
Stock Options - Employees. The maximum number of shares of Stock, in the
aggregate, that may be covered by a Stock Option granted to any one Employee under the Plan shall be
25,000 shares, all of which may be granted during any calendar year. This maximum amount represents
twenty-five percent (25%) of the maximum number of shares of Stock that may be delivered pursuant to
Stock Options under Section 3.2.
(ii)
Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit Awards - Employees. The maximum
number of shares of Stock, in the aggregate, that may be subject to Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted
Stock Units granted to any one Employee under the Plan shall be 36,250 shares, all of which may be granted
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during any calendar year. This maximum amount represents twenty-five percent (25%) of the maximum
number of shares of Stock that may be issued as Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units.
(b)

Director Awards.

(i)
Stock Options – Individual and Aggregate Limits. Individual non-employee
Directors may be granted Stock Options of up to 5,000 shares, in the aggregate, all of which may be granted
during any calendar year and, in addition, all non-employee Directors, in the aggregate, may be granted up
to 30,000 shares all of which may be granted during any calendar year. These maximum amounts represent
five percent (5%) and thirty percent (30%), respectively, of the maximum number of shares of Stock that
may be delivered pursuant to Stock Options under Section 3.2.
(ii)
Restricted Stock/Restricted Stock Unit Awards – Individual and Aggregate Limits.
Individual non-employee Directors may be granted Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units of
up to 7,250 shares, in the aggregate, all of which may be granted during any calendar year and, in addition,
all non-employee Directors, in the aggregate, may be granted up to 43,500 shares all of which may be
granted during any calendar year. These maximum amounts represent five percent (5%) and thirty percent
(30%), respectively, of the maximum number of shares of Stock that may be delivered pursuant to
Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units under Section 3.2.
Section 3.4 Corporate Transactions.
(a)
General. In the event any recapitalization, reclassification, forward or reverse stock split,
reorganization, merger, consolidation, spin-off, combination, or exchange of shares of Stock or other
securities, stock dividend or other special and nonrecurring dividend or distribution (whether in the form
of cash, securities or other property), liquidation, dissolution, or increase or decrease in the number of shares
of Stock without consideration, or similar corporate transaction or event, affects the shares of Stock such
that an adjustment is appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the rights of Participants
under the Plan and/or under any Award granted under the Plan, then the Committee shall, in an equitable
manner, adjust any or all of: (i) the number and kind of securities deemed to be available thereafter for
grants of Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units in the aggregate to all
Participants and individually to any one Participant; (ii) the number and kind of securities that may be
delivered or deliverable in respect of outstanding Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted
Stock Units; and (iii) the Exercise Price. In addition, the Committee is authorized to adjust the terms and
conditions of, and the criteria included in, Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock
Units (including, without limitation, cancellation of Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted
Stock Units in exchange for the in-the-money value, if any, of the vested portion thereof, or substitution or
exchange of Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units using stock of a successor
or other entity) in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring events (including, without limitation, events
described in the first sentence in this paragraph) affecting the Company or any parent or Subsidiary or the
financial statements of the Company or any parent or Subsidiary, or in response to changes in applicable
laws, regulations, or accounting principles.
(b)
Merger in Which Company is Not Surviving Entity. In the event of any merger,
consolidation, or other business reorganization (including, but not limited to, a Change in Control) in which
the Company is not the surviving entity, any Stock Options granted under the Plan which remain
outstanding shall be converted into Stock Options to purchase voting common equity securities of the
business entity which survives the merger, consolidation or other business reorganization having
substantially the same terms and conditions as the outstanding Stock Options under this Plan and reflecting
the same economic benefit (as measured by the difference between the aggregate Exercise Price and the
value exchanged for outstanding shares of Stock in the merger, consolidation or other business
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reorganization), all as determined by the Committee or the Board prior to the consummation of the merger,
consolidation or other business reorganization. Similarly, any Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units
which remain outstanding shall be assumed by and become Restricted Stock and/or Restricted Stock Units
of the business entity which survives the merger, consolidation or other business reorganization. In the
event the acquiring entity fails or refuses to assume the Company’s outstanding Awards: (1) any Servicebased Awards shall vest immediately at or immediately prior to the effective time of the merger,
consolidation or other business reorganization; (2) any Awards subject to performance-based vesting
conditions shall vest in the same manner as required under Section 4.1(c) hereof at the time of the merger,
consolidation or other business reorganization, as if the holder thereof incurred an Involuntary Termination
of Service on that date; and (3) unless another treatment is specified in the documents governing the merger,
consolidation or other business organization, in the case of vested Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock
Units, holders thereof shall receive on the effective date of the transaction, the same value as received by a
holder of a share of Stock, multiplied by the number of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units held, and
in the case of a holder of Stock Options, the holder shall receive the difference, in cash, between the
aggregate Exercise Price of the holder’s outstanding Stock Options and the value exchanged for outstanding
shares of Stock in the merger, consolidation or other business reorganization.
Section 3.5 Delivery of Shares. Delivery of shares of Stock or other amounts under the Plan shall be
subject to the following:
(a)
Compliance with Applicable Laws. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the
Company shall have no obligation to deliver any shares of Stock or make any other distribution of benefits
under the Plan unless the delivery or distribution complies with all applicable laws (including, the
requirements of the Securities Act), and the applicable requirements of any Exchange or similar entity.
(b)
Certificates. To the extent that the Plan provides for the issuance of shares of Stock, the
issuance may be effected on a non-certificated basis, to the extent not prohibited by applicable law or the
applicable rules of any Exchange.
ARTICLE 4 — CHANGE IN CONTROL
Section 4.1 Consequence of a Change in Control. Subject to the provisions of Section 2.5 (relating
to vesting and acceleration) and Section 3.4 (relating to the adjustment of shares), and except as otherwise
provided in the Plan:
(a)
At the time of an Involuntary Termination at or following a Change in Control, all servicebased Stock Options then held by the Participant shall become fully earned and exercisable (subject to the
expiration provisions otherwise applicable to the Stock Option). All Stock Options may be exercised for a
period of one (1) year following the Participant’s Involuntary Termination, provided, however, that no
Stock Option shall be eligible for treatment as an ISO in the event the Stock Option is exercised more than
three (3) months following the termination of employment.
(b)
At the time of an Involuntary Termination at or following a Change in Control, all Servicebased Awards of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units shall become fully earned and vested
immediately.
(c)
In the event of an Involuntary Termination at or following a Change in Control, a prorated
portion of any Performance Awards will vest based on actual performance measured as of the most recent
completed fiscal quarter. If actual performance cannot be determined, a prorated portion of the Performance
Awards will vest at the target performance level. The pro-rata portion will be calculated based on a number
of months worked during the performance period as a percentage of the total performance period.
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Section 4.2 Definition of Change in Control. For purposes of this Plan, the term “Change in Control”
shall mean the consummation by the Company or the Bank, in a single transaction or series of related
transactions, of any of the following:
(a)
Merger. The Company or the Bank merges into or consolidates with another entity, or
merges another bank or corporation into the Company or the Bank, and, as a result, less than a majority of
the combined voting power of the resulting corporation immediately after the merger or consolidation is
held by persons who were stockholders of the Company or the Bank immediately before the merger or
consolidation;
(b)
Acquisition of Significant Share Ownership. There is filed, or is required to be filed, a
report on Schedule 13D or another form or schedule (other than a Schedule 13G) required under
Section 13(d) or 14(d) of the Exchange Act, that discloses that the filing person has or persons acting in
concert have become the beneficial owner of 25% or more of a class of the Company’s or Bank’s voting
securities; provided, however, this sub-section (b) shall not apply to beneficial ownership of the Company’s
or the Bank’s voting shares held in a fiduciary capacity by an entity in which the Company directly or
indirectly beneficially owns 50% or more of its outstanding Voting Securities;
(c)
Change in Board Composition. During any period of two consecutive years, individuals
who constitute the Company’s or the Bank’s board of directors at the beginning of the two-year period
cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Company’s or the Bank’s board of directors;
provided, however, that for purposes of this sub-section (c), each director who is first elected by the board
of directors (or first nominated by the board of directors for election by the stockholders) by a vote of at
least two-thirds (2/3) of the directors who were directors at the beginning of the two-year period shall be
deemed to have also been a director at the beginning of the period or who is appointed as a director as a
result of a directive, supervisory agreement or order issued by the primary regulator of the Company or the
Bank or by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation shall be deemed to have also been a director at the
beginning of the period; or
(d)
its assets.

Sale of Assets. The Company or the Bank sells to a third party all or substantially all of

In addition, in no event shall a reorganization of Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C. (i.e., the mutual holding
company), the Company and the Bank solely within its corporate structure or a second-step conversion
constitute a Change in Control for purposes of the Plan.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Change in Control shall not be deemed to occur solely because
any Person (the “Subject Person”) acquired beneficial ownership of more than the permitted amount of the
then outstanding Stock or Voting Securities as a result of a change in the number of shares of Stock or
Voting Securities then outstanding, which thereby increases the proportional number of shares beneficially
owned by the Subject Person; provided, however, that if a Change in Control would occur (but for the
operation of this sentence) as a result of the acquisition of Stock or Voting Securities by the Company, and
after such share acquisition by the Company, the Subject Person becomes the beneficial owner of any
additional Stock or Voting Securities which increases the percentage of the then outstanding Stock or
Voting Securities beneficially owned by the Subject Person, then a Change in Control shall occur.
In addition, if an Award constitutes Deferred Compensation, and the settlement of, or distribution
of benefits under, the Award is to be triggered solely by a Change in Control, then with respect to the
Award, a Change in Control shall be defined as required under Code Section 409A, as in effect at the time
of the transaction.
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ARTICLE 5 — COMMITTEE
Section 5.1 Administration. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. If the Committee
consists of fewer than three (3) Disinterested Board Members, then the Board of Directors shall appoint to
the Committee additional Disinterested Board Members as shall be necessary to provide for a Committee
consisting of at least three (3) Disinterested Board Members. Any members of the Committee who do not
qualify as Disinterested Board Members shall abstain from participating in any discussion or decision to
make or administer Awards that are made to Participants who at the time of consideration for such Award
are persons subject to the short-swing profit rules of Section 16 of the Exchange Act. The Board of Directors
(or if necessary to maintain compliance with the applicable listing standards, those members of the Board
of Directors who are “independent directors” under the corporate governance statutes or rules of any
Exchange on which the Company lists, has listed or seeks to list its securities) may, in their discretion, take
any action and exercise any power, privilege or discretion conferred on the Committee under the Plan with
the same force and effect under the Plan as if done or exercised by the Committee.
Section 5.2 Powers of Committee.
to the following:

The administration of the Plan by the Committee shall be subject

(a)
The Committee shall have the authority and discretion to select those persons who shall
receive Awards, to determine the time or times of receipt, to determine the types of Awards and the number
of shares of Stock covered by the Awards, to establish the terms, conditions, features (including automatic
exercise in accordance with Section 7.18), performance criteria, restrictions (including without limitation,
provisions relating to non-competition, non-solicitation and confidentiality), and other provisions of such
Awards (subject to the restrictions imposed by Article 6), to cancel or suspend Awards and to reduce,
eliminate or accelerate any restrictions or vesting requirements applicable to an Award at any time after the
grant of the Award; provided, however, that the Committee shall not exercise its discretion to accelerate an
Award within the first year following the date of grant, or to extend the time period to exercise a Stock
Option unless the extension is consistent with Code Section 409A.
(b)
The Committee shall have the authority and discretion to interpret the Plan, to establish,
amend and rescind any rules and regulations relating to the Plan, and to make all other determinations that
may be necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan.
(c)

The Committee shall have the authority to define terms not otherwise defined herein.

(d)
In controlling and managing the operation and administration of the Plan, the Committee
shall take action in a manner that conforms to the articles of incorporation and bylaws of the Company and
applicable corporate law.
(e)
The Committee shall have the authority to: (i) suspend a Participant’s right to exercise a
Stock Option during a blackout period (or similar restricted period) or to exercise in a particular manner
(i.e., such as a “cashless exercise” or “broker-assisted exercise”) to the extent that the Committee deems it
necessary or in the best interests of the Company in order to comply with the securities laws and regulations
issued by the SEC (the “Blackout Period”); and (ii) to extend the period to exercise a Stock Option by a
period of time equal to the Blackout Period, provided that the extension does not violate Section 409A of
the Code, the Incentive Stock Option requirements or applicable laws and regulations.
Section 5.3 Delegation by Committee. Except to the extent prohibited by applicable law, the
applicable rules of an Exchange upon which the Company lists its shares or the Plan, or as necessary to
comply with the exemptive provisions of Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, the Committee
may allocate all or any portion of its responsibilities and powers to any one or more of its members and
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may delegate all or any part of its responsibilities and powers to any person or persons selected by it,
including: (a) delegating to a committee of one or more members of the Board of Directors who are not
“non-employee directors,” within the meaning of Rule 16b-3, the authority to grant Awards under the Plan
to eligible persons who are not then subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act; or (b) delegating to a
committee of one or more members of the Board of Directors who would be eligible to serve on the
Compensation Committee of the Company pursuant to the listing requirements imposed by any Exchange
on which the Company lists, has listed or seeks to list its securities, the authority to grant Awards under the
Plan. The acts of the delegates shall be treated hereunder as acts of the Committee and the delegates shall
report regularly to the Committee regarding the exercise of delegated duties and responsibilities and any
Awards so granted. Any such allocation or delegation may be revoked by the Committee at any time.
Section 5.4 Information to be Furnished to Committee. As may be permitted by applicable law, the
Company and its Subsidiaries shall furnish the Committee with data and information it determines may be
required for it to discharge its duties. The records of the Company and its Subsidiaries as to a Participant’s
employment, termination of employment, leave of absence, reemployment and compensation shall be
conclusive on all persons unless determined by the Committee to be manifestly incorrect. Subject to
applicable law, Participants and other persons entitled to benefits under the Plan must furnish the
Committee any evidence, data or information as the Committee considers desirable to carry out the terms
of the Plan.
Section 5.5 Committee Action. The Committee shall hold meetings, and may make administrative
rules and regulations, as it may deem proper. A majority of the members of the Committee shall constitute
a quorum, and the action of a majority of the members of the Committee present at a meeting at which a
quorum is present, as well as actions taken pursuant to the unanimous written consent of all of the members
of the Committee without holding a meeting, shall be deemed to be actions of the Committee. Subject to
Section 5.1, all actions of the Committee, including interpretations of provisions of the Plan, shall be final
and conclusive and shall be binding upon the Company, Participants and all other interested parties. Any
person dealing with the Committee shall be fully protected in relying upon any written notice, instruction,
direction or other communication signed by a member of the Committee or by a representative of the
Committee authorized to sign the same in its behalf.
ARTICLE 6 — AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION
Section 6.1 General. The Board of Directors may, as permitted by law, at any time, amend or terminate
the Plan, and may amend any Award Agreement, provided that no amendment or termination (except as
provided in Sections 2.6, 3.4 and 6.2) may cause the Award to violate Code Section 409A, may cause the
repricing of a Stock Option, or, in the absence of written consent to the change by the affected Participant
(or, if the Participant is not then living, the affected beneficiary), adversely impair the rights of any
Participant or beneficiary under any Award prior to the date the amendment is adopted by the Board of
Directors; provided, however, that, no amendment may (a) materially increase the benefits accruing to
Participants under the Plan, (b) materially increase the aggregate number of securities which may be issued
under the Plan, other than pursuant to Section 3.4, or (c) materially modify the requirements for
participation in the Plan, unless the amendment is approved by the Company’s stockholders.
Section 6.2 Amendment to Conform to Law and Accounting Changes. Notwithstanding any
provision in this Plan or any Award Agreement to the contrary, the Committee may amend the Plan or any
Award Agreement, to take effect retroactively or otherwise, as deemed necessary or advisable for the
purpose of: (i) conforming the Plan or the Award Agreement to any present or future law relating to plans
of this or similar nature (including, but not limited to, Code Section 409A); or (ii) avoiding an accounting
treatment resulting from an accounting pronouncement or interpretation thereof issued by the SEC or the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) subsequent to the adoption of the Plan or the making
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of the Award affected thereby, which, in the sole discretion of the Committee, may materially and adversely
affect the financial condition or results of operations of the Company. By accepting an Award under this
Plan, each Participant agrees and consents to any amendment made pursuant to this Section 6.2 to any
Award granted under the Plan without further consideration or action.
ARTICLE 7 — GENERAL TERMS
Section 7.1 No Implied Rights.
(a)
No Rights to Specific Assets. Neither a Participant nor any other person shall by reason
of participation in the Plan acquire any right in or title to any assets, funds or property of the Company or
any Subsidiary whatsoever, including any specific funds, assets, or other property which the Company or
any Subsidiary, in its sole discretion, may set aside in anticipation of a liability under the Plan. A Participant
shall have only a contractual right, evidenced by an Award Agreement, to the shares of Stock or amounts,
if any, payable or distributable under the Plan, unsecured by any assets of the Company or any Subsidiary,
and nothing contained in the Plan shall constitute a guarantee that the assets of the Company or any
Subsidiary shall be sufficient to pay any benefits to any person.
(b)
No Contractual Right to Employment or Future Awards. The Plan does not constitute a
contract of employment, and selection as a Participant will not give any participating Employee the right
to be retained in the employ of the Company or any Subsidiary or any right or claim to any benefit under
the Plan, unless the right or claim has specifically accrued under the terms of the Plan. No individual shall
have the right to be selected to receive an Award under the Plan, or, having been so selected, to receive a
future Award under the Plan.
(c)
No Rights as a Stockholder. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or in an Award
Agreement, no Award shall confer upon the holder thereof any rights as a stockholder of the Company prior
to the date on which the individual fulfills all conditions for receipt of such rights.
Section 7.2 Transferability. Except as otherwise so provided by the Committee, Stock Options under
the Plan are not transferable except: (i) as designated by the Participant by will or by the laws of descent
and distribution; (ii) to a trust established by the Participant, if under Code Section 671 and applicable state
law, the Participant is considered the sole beneficial owner of the Stock Option while held in trust; or
(iii) between spouses incident to a divorce or pursuant to a domestic relations order, provided, however, in
the case of a transfer within the meaning of Section 7.2(iii), the Stock Option shall not qualify as an ISO as
of the day of the transfer. The Committee shall have the discretion to permit the transfer of vested Stock
Options (other than ISOs) under the Plan; provided, however, that such transfers shall be limited to
Immediate Family Members of Participants, trusts and partnerships established for the primary benefit of
the family members or to charitable organizations, and provided, further, that the transfers are not made for
consideration to the Participant.
Awards of Restricted Stock shall not be transferable prior to the time that the Awards vest in the Participant.
A Restricted Stock Unit Award is not transferable, except in the event of death, prior to the time that the
Restricted Stock Unit Award vests and is earned and the property in which the Restricted Stock Unit is
denominated is distributed to the Participant or the Participant’s Beneficiary.
Section 7.3 Designation of Beneficiaries. A Participant may file with the Company a written
designation of a beneficiary or beneficiaries under this Plan and may from time to time revoke or amend
any such designation. Any designation of beneficiary under this Plan shall be controlling over any other
disposition, testamentary or otherwise (unless the disposition is pursuant to a domestic relations order);
provided, however, that if the Committee is in doubt as to the entitlement of any beneficiary to any Award,
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the Committee may determine to recognize only the legal representative of the Participant, in which case
the Company, the Committee and the members thereof shall not be under any further liability to anyone.
Section 7.4 Non-Exclusivity. Neither the adoption of this Plan by the Board of Directors nor the
submission of the Plan to the stockholders of the Company for approval (and any subsequent approval by
the stockholders of the Company) shall be construed as creating any limitations on the power of the Board
of Directors or the Committee to adopt other incentive arrangements as may deemed desirable, including,
without limitation, the granting of Restricted Stock Awards, Restricted Stock Units or Stock Options and
such arrangements may be either generally applicable or applicable only in specific cases.
Section 7.5 Eligibility for Form and Time of Elections/Notification Under Code
Section 83(b). Unless otherwise specified herein, each election required or permitted to be made by any
Participant or other person entitled to benefits under the Plan, and any permitted modification or revocation
thereof, shall be filed with the Company at such times, in such form, and subject to such restrictions and
limitations, not inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, as the Committee shall require. Notwithstanding
anything herein to the contrary, the Committee may, on the date of grant or at a later date, as applicable,
prohibit an individual from making an election under Code Section 83(b). If the Committee has not
prohibited an individual from making this election, an individual who makes this election shall notify the
Committee of the election within ten (10) days of filing notice of the election with the Internal Revenue
Service or as otherwise required by the Committee. This requirement is in addition to any filing and
notification required under the regulations issued under the authority of Code Section 83(b).
Section 7.6 Evidence. Evidence required of anyone under the Plan may be by certificate, affidavit,
document or other written information upon which the person is acting considers pertinent and reliable, and
signed, made or presented by the proper party or parties.
Section 7.7 Tax Withholding. Where a Participant is entitled to receive shares of Stock upon the
vesting or exercise of an Award, the Company shall have the right to require the Participant to pay to the
Company the amount of any tax that the Company is required to withhold with respect to the vesting or
exercise, or, in lieu thereof, to retain, or to sell without notice, a sufficient number of shares of Stock to
cover the amount required to be withheld. To the extent determined by the Committee and specified in an
Award Agreement, a Participant shall have the right to direct the Company to satisfy the amount required
for federal, state and local tax withholding by: (i) with respect to a Stock Option, reducing the number of
shares of Stock subject to the Stock Option (without issuance of the shares of Stock to the Stock Option
holder) by a number equal to the quotient of (a) the amount of required tax withholding divided by (b) the
excess of the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on the exercise date over the Exercise Price per share
of Stock; and (ii) with respect to Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units, withholding a number
of shares (based on the Fair Market Value on the vesting date) otherwise vesting that would satisfy the
amount of required tax withholding. Provided there are no adverse accounting consequences to the
Company (a requirement to have liability classification of an award under FASB ASC Topic 718 is an
adverse consequence), a Participant who is not required to have taxes withheld may require the Company
to withhold in accordance with the preceding sentence as if the Award were subject to tax withholding
requirements.
Section 7.8 Action by Company or Subsidiary. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the
Company or any Subsidiary shall be by resolution or unanimous written consent of its board of directors,
or by action of one or more members of the board of directors (including a committee of the board of
directors) who are duly authorized to act for the board of directors, or (except to the extent prohibited by
applicable law or applicable rules of the Exchange on which the Company lists its securities) by a duly
authorized officer of the Company or Subsidiary.
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Section 7.9 Successors. All obligations of the Company under the Plan shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of any successor to the Company, whether the existence of the successor is the result of a
direct or indirect purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, of all or substantially all of the business,
stock, and/or assets of the Company.
Section 7.10 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law and the Company’s governing
documents, each person who is or shall have been a member of the Committee, or of the Board of Directors,
or an officer of the Company to whom authority was delegated in accordance with Section 5.3, or an
Employee of the Company, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company against and from any
loss (including amounts paid in settlement), cost, liability or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees)
that may be imposed upon or reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with or resulting from any
claim, action, suit, or proceeding to which he or she may be a party or in which he or she may be involved
by reason of any action taken or failure to act under the Plan and against and from any and all amounts paid
by him or her in settlement thereof, with the Company’s approval, or paid by him or her in satisfaction of
any judgment in any such action, suit, or proceeding against him or her, provided he or she shall give the
Company an opportunity, at its own expense, to handle and defend the same before he or she undertakes to
handle and defend it on his or her own behalf, unless such loss, cost, liability, or expense is a result of his
or her own willful misconduct or except as expressly provided by statute or regulation. The foregoing right
of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to which such persons may
be entitled under the Company’s articles of incorporation or bylaws, as a matter of law, or otherwise, or
any power that the Company may have to indemnify them or hold them harmless. The foregoing right to
indemnification shall include the right to be paid by the Company the expenses incurred in defending any
such proceeding in advance of its final disposition, provided, however, that, if required by applicable law,
an advancement of expenses shall be made only upon delivery to the Company of an undertaking, by or on
behalf of such persons to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial
decision from which there is no further right to appeal that such person is not entitled to be indemnified for
such expenses.
Section 7.11 No Fractional Shares. Unless otherwise permitted by the Committee, no fractional shares
of Stock shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or any Award Agreement. The Committee shall
determine whether cash or other property shall be issued or paid in lieu of fractional shares or whether the
fractional shares or any rights thereto shall be forfeited or otherwise eliminated by rounding down.
Section 7.12 Governing Law. The Plan, all Awards granted hereunder, and all actions taken in
connection herewith shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Maryland without reference to principles of conflict of laws, except as superseded by applicable federal
law. The federal and state courts located in the State of Maryland, shall have exclusive jurisdiction over
any claim, action, complaint or lawsuit brought under the terms of the Plan. By accepting any Award, each
Participant and any other person claiming any rights under the Plan agrees to submit himself or herself and
any legal action that brought with respect to the Plan, to the sole jurisdiction of such courts for the
adjudication and resolution of any such disputes.
Section 7.13 Benefits Under Other Plans. Except as otherwise provided by the Committee or as set
forth in a Qualified Retirement Plan, non-qualified plan or other benefit plan, Awards to a Participant
(including the grant and the receipt of benefits) under the Plan shall be disregarded for purposes of
determining the Participant’s benefits under, or contributions to, any Qualified Retirement Plan, nonqualified plan and any other benefit plans maintained by the Participant’s employer. The term “Qualified
Retirement Plan” means any plan of the Company or a Subsidiary that is intended to be qualified under
Code Section 401(a).
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Section 7.14 Validity. If any provision of this Plan is determined to be illegal or invalid for any reason,
said illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, but this Plan shall be construed
and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision has never been included herein.
Section 7.15 Notice. Unless otherwise provided in an Award Agreement, all written notices and all
other written communications to the Company provided for in the Plan or in any Award Agreement, shall
be delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid
(provided that international mail shall be sent via overnight or two-day delivery), or sent by facsimile, email
or prepaid overnight courier to the Company at its principal executive office. Notices, demands, claims and
other communications shall be deemed given:
(a)
in the case of delivery by overnight service with guaranteed next day delivery, the next day
or the day designated for delivery;
or

(b)

in the case of certified or registered U.S. mail, five (5) days after deposit in the U.S. mail;

(c)
in the case of facsimile or email, the date upon which the transmitting party received
confirmation of receipt; provided, however, that in no event shall any such communications be deemed to
be given later than the date they are actually received, provided they are actually received.
If a communication is not received, it shall only be deemed received upon the showing of an original of the
applicable receipt, registration or confirmation from the applicable delivery service. Communications that
are to be delivered by U.S. mail or by overnight service to the Company shall be directed to the attention
of the Company’s Corporate Secretary, unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement.
Section 7.16 Forfeiture Events. The Committee may specify in an Award Agreement that the
Participant’s rights, payments, and benefits with respect to an Award shall be subject to reduction,
cancellation, forfeiture or recoupment upon the occurrence of certain specified events, in addition to any
otherwise applicable vesting or performance conditions of an Award. These events include, but are not
limited to, termination of employment for Cause, termination of the Participant’s provision of Services to
the Company or any Subsidiary, violation of material Company or Subsidiary policies, breach of
noncompetition, confidentiality, or other restrictive covenants that may apply to the Participant, or other
conduct of the Participant that is detrimental to the business or reputation of the Company or any Subsidiary.
Section 7.17 Awards Subject to Clawback. (a) If the Company is required to prepare an accounting
restatement due to the material noncompliance of the Company, as a result of misconduct, with any financial
reporting requirement under the federal securities laws, and the automatic forfeiture provisions under
Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 apply as a result, any Participant who was an executive
officer of the Company at the time of grant or at the time of restatement shall be subject to “clawback” as
if the person was subject to Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
(b)
Awards granted hereunder are subject to any Clawback Policy that may be adopted by the
Company from time to time, whether pursuant to the provisions of Section 954 of the Dodd-Frank Wall
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, implementing regulations thereunder, or otherwise
Section 7.18 Automatic Exercise. In the sole discretion of the Committee exercised in accordance with
Section 5.2(a), any Stock Options that are exercisable but unexercised as of the day immediately before the
tenth anniversary of the date of grant (or other expiration date) may be automatically exercised, in
accordance with procedures established for this purpose by the Committee, but only if the Exercise Price is
less than the Fair Market Value of a share of Stock on that date and the automatic exercise will result in the
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issuance of at least one (1) whole share of Stock to the Participant after payment of the Exercise Price and
any applicable tax withholding requirements. Payment of the Exercise Price and any applicable tax
withholding requirements shall be made by a net settlement of the Stock Option whereby the number of
shares of Stock to be issued upon exercise are reduced by a number of shares having a Fair Market Value
on the date of exercise equal to the Exercise Price and any applicable tax withholding.
Section 7.19 Regulatory Requirements. The grant and settlement of Awards shall be conditioned
upon and subject to compliance with Section 18(k) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C. 1828(k),
and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
ARTICLE 8 — DEFINED TERMS; CONSTRUCTION
Section 8.1 In addition to the other definitions contained herein, unless otherwise specifically provided
in an Award Agreement, the following definitions shall apply:
(a)
“10% Stockholder” means an individual who, at the time of grant, owns Stock possessing
more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of Stock of the Company.
(b)
“Award” means any Stock Option, Restricted Stock Award or Restricted Stock Unit or any
other right or interest relating to Stock or cash, granted to a Participant under the Plan.
(c)
“Award Agreement” means the document (in whatever medium prescribed by the
Committee and whether or not a signature is required or provided by a Participant) that evidences the terms
and conditions of an Award. A copy of the Award Agreement shall be provided (or made available
electronically) to each Participant.
(d)

“Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

(e)
If the Participant is a party to a written employment agreement (or other similar written
agreement) with the Company or a Subsidiary that provides a definition of termination for “Cause,” then,
for purposes of this Plan, the term “Cause” shall have meaning set forth in the agreement. In the absence of
such a definition, “Cause” means termination because of a Participant’s personal dishonesty, incompetence,
willful misconduct, breach of fiduciary duty involving personal profit, material breach of the Company’s
or the Bank’s (or other Subsidiary’s) Code of Ethics, material violation of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
requirements for officers of public companies that in the reasonable opinion of either co-Chief Executive
Officer (or Chief Executive Officer if there are no longer co-Chief Executive Officers) of the Company or
the Bank or the Board of Directors will likely cause substantial financial harm or substantial injury to the
reputation of the Bank or the Company, willfully engaging in actions that in the reasonable opinion of the
Board of Directors will likely cause substantial financial harm or substantial injury to the business
reputation of the Bank or the Company, intentional failure to perform stated duties, willful violation of any
law, rule or regulation (other than routine traffic violations or similar offenses) or final cease-and-desist
order, or material breach of any provision of the contract.
(f)

“Change in Control” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.2.

(g)
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any rules, regulations
and guidance promulgated thereunder, as modified from time to time.
(h)
Subsidiary.

“Director” means a member of the Board of Directors or of a board of directors of a
A-17

(i)
If the Participant is a party to a written employment agreement (or other similar written
agreement) with the Company or a Subsidiary that provides a definition of “Disability” or “Disabled,” then,
for purposes of this Plan, the terms “Disability” or “Disabled” shall have meaning set forth in that
agreement. In the absence of such a definition, “Disability” shall be defined in accordance with the Bank’s
long-term disability plan. In the absence of a long-term disability plan or to the extent that an Award is
subject to Code Section 409A, “Disability” or “Disabled” shall mean that a Participant has been determined
to be disabled by the Social Security Administration. Except to the extent prohibited under Code
Section 409A, if applicable, the Committee shall have discretion to determine if a Disability has occurred.
(j)
“Disinterested Board Member” means a member of the Board of Directors who: (i) is not
a current Employee of the Company or a Subsidiary; (ii) is not a former employee of the Company or a
Subsidiary who received compensation for prior Services (other than benefits under a tax-qualified
retirement plan) during the taxable year; (iii) has not been an officer of the Company or a Subsidiary for
the past three (3) years; (iv) does not receive compensation from the Company or a Subsidiary, either
directly or indirectly, for services as a consultant or in any capacity other than as a Director except in an
amount for which disclosure would not be required pursuant to Item 404 of SEC Regulation S-K or any
successor provision thereto; and (v) does not possess an interest in any other transaction, and is not engaged
in a business relationship for which disclosure would be required pursuant to Item 404(a) of SEC
Regulation S-K or any successor provision thereto. The term Disinterested Board Member shall be
interpreted in a manner as shall be necessary to conform to the requirements of Rule 16b-3 promulgated
under the Exchange Act and the corporate governance standards imposed on compensation committees
under the listing requirements imposed by any Exchange on which the Company lists or seeks to list its
securities.
(k)
“Dividend Equivalent Right” means the right, associated with a Restricted Stock Unit, to
receive a payment, in cash or shares of Stock, as applicable, equal to the amount of dividends paid on a
share Stock, as specified in the Award Agreement.
(l)
“Employee” means any person employed by the Company or a Subsidiary, including
Directors who are also employed by the Company or a Subsidiary.
(m)
“Exchange” means any national securities exchange on which the Stock may from time to
time be listed or traded.
(n)
“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended and the rules,
regulations and guidance promulgated thereunder, as modified from time to to time.
(o)
Section 2.2.

“Exercise Price” means the price established with respect to a Stock Option pursuant to

(p)
“Fair Market Value” on any date, means: (i) if the Stock is listed on an Exchange, national
market system or automated quotation system, the closing sales price on that Exchange or over such system
on that date or, in the absence of reported sales on that date, the closing sales price on the immediately
preceding date on which sales were reported; or (ii) if the Stock is not listed on an Exchange, “Fair Market
Value” shall mean a price determined by the Committee in good faith on the basis of objective criteria
consistent with the requirements of Code Section 422 and applicable provisions of Code Section 409A.
(q)
A termination of employment by an Employee Participant shall be deemed a termination
of employment for “Good Reason” as a result of the Participant’s resignation from the employ of the
Company or any Subsidiary upon the occurrence of any of the following events:
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(i)

a material diminution in Participant’s base compensation;

(ii)

a material diminution in Participant’s authority, duties or responsibilities;

(iii)
a change in the geographic location at which Participant must perform his duties
that is more than twenty-five (25) miles from the location of Participant’s principal workplace; or
(iv)
notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event a Participant is a party to an
employment, change in control, severance or similar agreement that provides a definition for “Good
Reason” or a substantially similar term, then the occurrence of any event set forth in such definition.
(r)
“Immediate Family Member” means with respect to any Participant: (i) any of the
Participant’s children, stepchildren, grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, spouses, former
spouses, siblings, nieces, nephews, mothers-in-law, fathers-in-law, sons-in-law, daughters-in-law, brothersin-law or sisters-in-law, including relationships created by adoption; (ii) any natural person sharing the
Participant’s household (other than as a tenant or employee, directly or indirectly, of the Participant); (iii) a
trust in which any combination of the Participant and persons described in section (i) and (ii) above own
more than fifty percent (50%) of the beneficial interests; (iv) a foundation in which any combination of the
Participant and persons described in sections (i) and (ii) above control management of the assets; or (v) any
other corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other entity in which any combination of the
Participant and persons described in sections (i) and (ii) above control more than fifty percent (50%) of the
voting interests.
(s)
“Involuntary Termination” means the Termination of Service of a Participant by the
Company or Subsidiary (other than termination for Cause) or termination of employment by an Employee
Participant for Good Reason.
(t)

“Incentive Stock Option” or “ISO” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.2.

(u)
“Non-Qualified Option” means the right to purchase shares of Stock that is either:
(i) designated as a Non-Qualified Option, (ii) granted to a Participant who is not an Employee; or
(iii) granted to an Employee, but does not satisfy the requirements of Code Section 422.
(v)
“Performance Award” means an Award that vests in whole or in part upon the achievement
of one or more specified performance measures, as determined by the Committee. The conditions for grant
or vesting and the other provisions of a Performance Award (including without limitation any applicable
performance measures) need not be the same with respect to each recipient. A Performance Award shall
vest, or as to Restricted Stock Units be settled, after the Committee has determined that the performance
goals have been satisfied. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no Performance Award shall be
granted under terms that will permit its accelerated vesting upon termination of Service (other than death
or Disability or upon an Involuntary Termination following a Change in Control).
Performance measures can include, but are not limited to: book value or tangible book value per
share; basic earnings per share (e.g., earnings before interest and taxes, earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization; or earnings per share); basic cash earnings per share; diluted earnings per
share; return on assets; cash return on assets; return on equity; cash return on equity; return on tangible
equity; cash return on tangible equity; net income or net income before taxes; net interest income; noninterest income; non-interest expense to average assets ratio; cash general and administrative expense to
average assets ratio; efficiency ratio; cash efficiency ratio; operating efficiency ratio; financial return ratios;
core earnings, capital; increase in revenue; total stockholder return; total shareholder return including
special dividends; net operating income, operating income; net interest margin or net interest rate spread;
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cash flow; cash earnings; stock price; assets, growth in assets, loans or deposits, asset quality metrics,
charge-offs, loan reserves, non-performing assets and loans, growth of loans, loan production volume; nonperforming asset ratio; regulatory compliance or safety and soundness; achievement of balance sheet or
income statement objectives and strategic business objectives, or any combination of these or other
measures.
Performance measures may be based on the performance of the Company as a whole or on any one
or more Subsidiaries or business units of the Company or a Subsidiary and may be measured relative to a
peer group, an index or a business plan and may be considered as absolute measures or changes in measures.
The terms of an Award may provide that partial achievement of performance measures may result in partial
payment or vesting of the award or that the achievement of the performance measures may be measured
over more than one period or fiscal year. In establishing any performance measures, the Committee may
provide for the exclusion of the effects of the following items, to the extent the exclusion is set forth in the
Award Agreement and identified in the audited financial statements of the Company, including footnotes,
or in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of the Company’s annual report or in an earnings
release or in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis Section, if any, of the Company’s annual proxy
statement: (i) extraordinary, unusual, and/or nonrecurring items of gain or loss; (ii) gains or losses on the
disposition of a business; (iii) dividends declared on the Company’s stock; (iv) changes in tax or accounting
principles, regulations or laws; or (v) expenses incurred in connection with a merger, branch acquisition or
similar transaction. Subject to the preceding sentence, if the Committee determines that a change in the
business, operations, corporate structure or capital structure of the Company or the manner in which the
Company or its Subsidiaries conducts its business or other events or circumstances render current
performance measures to be unsuitable, the Committee may modify the performance measures, in whole
or in part, as the Committee deems appropriate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein,
performance measures relating to any Award hereunder will be modified, to the extent applicable, to reflect
a change in the outstanding shares of Stock of the Company by reason of any stock dividend or stock split,
or a corporate transaction, such as a merger of the Company into another corporation, any separation of a
corporation or any partial or complete liquidation by the Company or a Subsidiary. If a Participant is
promoted, demoted or transferred to a different business unit during a performance period, the Committee
may determine that the selected performance measures or applicable performance period are no longer
appropriate, in which case, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may: (i) adjust, change or eliminate the
performance measures or change the applicable performance period; or (ii) cause to be made a cash payment
to the Participant in an amount determined by the Committee.
(w)
“Restricted Stock” or “Restricted Stock Award” has the meaning ascribed to it in
Section 2.3(a).
(x)

“Restricted Stock Unit” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.4(a).

(y)

“Restriction Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(b)(iii).

(z)

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

(aa)
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and the rules, regulations
and guidance promulgated thereunder and modified from time to time.
(bb)
“Service” means service as an Employee or Director of the Company or a Subsidiary, as
the case may be, and shall include service as a director emeritus or advisory director. Service shall not be
deemed interrupted in the case of sick leave, military leave or any other absence approved by the Company
or a Subsidiary, in the case of transferees between payroll locations or between the Company, a Subsidiary
or a successor.
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(cc)

“Stock” means the common stock of the Company, $0.01 par value per share.

(dd)

“Stock Option” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 2.2.

(ee)
“Subsidiary” means any corporation, affiliate, bank or other entity which would be a
subsidiary corporation with respect to the Company as defined in Code Section 424(f) and, other than with
respect to an ISO, shall also mean any partnership or joint venture in which the Company and/or other
Subsidiary owns more than 50% of the capital or profits interests.
(ff)
“Termination of Service” means the first day occurring on or after a grant date on which
the Participant ceases to be an Employee or Director (including a director emeritus or advisory director) of
the Company or any Subsidiary, regardless of the reason for such cessation, subject to the following:
(i)
The Participant’s cessation as an Employee shall not be deemed to occur by reason
of the Participant’s being on a bona fide leave of absence from the Company or a Subsidiary
approved by the Company or Subsidiary otherwise receiving the Participant’s Services, provided
the leave of absence does not exceed six (6) months, or if longer, so long as the Employee retains
a right to reemployment with the Company or Subsidiary under an applicable statute or by contract.
For these purposes, a leave of absence constitutes a bona fide leave of absence only if there is a
reasonable expectation that the Employee will return to perform Services for the Company or
Subsidiary. If the period of leave exceeds six (6) months and the Employee does not retain a right
to reemployment under an applicable statute or by contract, the employment relationship is deemed
to terminate on the first day immediately following the six-month period. For purposes of this subsection, to the extent applicable, an Employee’s leave of absence shall be interpreted by the
Committee in a manner consistent with Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)(1).
(ii)
If, as a result of a sale or other transaction, the Subsidiary for whom Participant is
employed (or to whom the Participant is providing Services) ceases to be a Subsidiary, and the
Participant is not, following the transaction, an Employee of the Company or an entity that is then
a Subsidiary, then the occurrence of the transaction shall be treated as the Participant’s Termination
of Service caused by the Participant being discharged by the entity by which the Participant is
employed or to which the Participant is providing Services.
(iii)
Except to the extent Code Section 409A may be applicable to an Award, and
subject to the foregoing paragraphs of this sub-section, the Committee shall have discretion to
determine if a Termination of Service has occurred and the date on which it occurred. In the event
that any Award under the Plan constitutes Deferred Compensation (as defined in Section 2.6), the
term Termination of Service shall be interpreted by the Committee in a manner consistent with the
definition of “Separation from Service” as defined under Code Section 409A and under Treasury
Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h)(ii). For purposes of this Plan, a “Separation from Service” shall
have occurred if the employer and Participant reasonably anticipate that no further Services will be
performed by the Participant after the date of the Termination of Service (whether as an Employee
or as an independent contractor) or the level of further Services performed will be less than 50% of
the average level of bona fide Services in the thirty-six (36) months immediately preceding the
Termination of Service. If a Participant is a “Specified Employee,” as defined in Code
Section 409A and any payment to be made hereunder shall be determined to be subject to Code
Section 409A, then if required by Code Section 409A, the payment or a portion of the payment (to
the minimum extent possible) shall be delayed and shall be paid on the first day of the seventh
month following Participant’s Separation from Service.
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(iv)
With respect to a Participant who is a Director, cessation as a Director will not be
deemed to have occurred if the Participant continues as a director emeritus or advisory director.
With respect to a Participant who is both an Employee and a Director, termination of employment
as an Employee shall not constitute a Termination of Service for purposes of the Plan so long as
the Participant continues to provide Service as a Director or director emeritus or advisory director.
(gg)
“Voting Securities” means any securities which ordinarily possess the power to vote in the
election of directors without the happening of any pre-condition or contingency.
Section 8.2 In this Plan, unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, the following uses
apply:
(a)
actions permitted under this Plan may be taken at any time and from time to time in the
actor’s reasonable discretion;
(b)
references to a statute shall refer to the statute and any successor statute, and to all
regulations promulgated under or implementing the statute or its successor, as in effect at the relevant time;
(c)
in computing periods from a specified date to a later specified date, the words “from” and
“commencing on” (and the like) mean “from and including,” and the words “to,” “until” and “ending on”
(and the like) mean “to, but excluding”;
(d)
references to a governmental or quasi-governmental agency, authority or instrumentality
shall also refer to a regulatory body that succeeds to the functions of the agency, authority or
instrumentality;
(e)

indications of time of day mean Eastern Time;

(f)

“including” means “including, but not limited to”;

(g)
all references to sections, schedules and exhibits are to sections, schedules and exhibits in
or to this Plan unless otherwise specified;
(h)
all words used in this Plan will be construed to be of the gender or number as the
circumstances and context require;
(i)
the captions and headings of articles, sections, schedules and exhibits appearing in or
attached to this Plan have been inserted solely for convenience of reference and shall not be considered a
part of this Plan nor shall any of them affect the meaning or interpretation of this Plan or any of its
provisions;
(j)
any reference to a document or set of documents in this Plan, and the rights and obligations
of the parties under any such documents, shall mean such document or documents as amended from time
to time, and any and all modifications, extensions, renewals, substitutions or replacements thereof; and
(k)
all accounting terms not specifically defined herein shall be construed in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.
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To the Board of Directors
BV Financial, Inc.
Baltimore, Maryland
Report of Independent Auditors
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of BV Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of BV Financial, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Baltimore, Maryland
March 19, 2021

8100 Sandpiper Circle, Suite 308, Baltimore, Maryland 21236
443-725-5395 Fax 443-725-5074
Website: www.Rowles.com

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
12/31/2019

12/31/2020

(In thousands except share amounts)
Assets
Cash

$

10,971

$

4,767

Interest-bearing deposits in other banks

81,019

19,463

Cash and cash equivalents

91,990

24,230

32,463

8,349

7,466

3,956

Securities available for sale
Securities held to maturity (fair value of $7,561 and $4,031)
Mortgage loans held for sale

-

322

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losses of $1,841 and $1,293

607,073

235,194

2,790

450

15,482

5,835

1,280

500

Investment in life insurance

26,195

7,450

Accrued interest receivable

2,936

992

12,830

1,116

Intangible assets, net

1,469

1,213

Deferred tax assets, net

8,156

3,045

Other assets

5,113

1,854

Foreclosed real estate
Premises and equipment, net
Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stock, at cost

Goodwill

T otal assets

$

815,565

$

$

151,087

$

294,184

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities
Noninterest-bearing deposits

21,498

Interest-bearing deposits

524,009

196,324

T otal deposits

675,096

217,822

1,657

827

54,655

3,000

Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance

1,582

1,672

Other liabilities

8,554

4,860

741,544

228,181

73

73

Paid-in capital

10,919

10,893

T reasury stock, at cost; 241,114 shares as of 2020 and 2019

(1,979)

(1,979)

Retained earnings

64,647

57,002

Official checks
Borrowings

T otal liabilities
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; none issued or outstanding
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 14,000,000 shares authorized 2020 & 2019; 7,349,028 shares
issued; and 7,098,872 shares outstanding as of 2020 ; 7,346,536 issued
and 7,105,422 outstanding as of 2019

Accumulated other comprehensive income
T otal stockholders' equity
$

T otal liabilities and stockholders' equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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361

14

74,021

66,003

815,565

$

294,184

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year Ended,
12/31/2020
12/31/2019
$17,764
$11,434
310
323
390
155

(in thousands except per share amounts)
Interest Income
Loans, including fees
Investment securities
Other interest income
Total interest income

18,229

12,147

Interest Expense
Interest on deposits
Interest on borrowed money

2,299
605

1,628
112

2,904

1,740

15,325
695

10,407
110

14,630

10,297

Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses
Noninterest Income
Service fees on deposits
Fees from debit cards
Income from investment in life insurance
Loss on sale of foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets
Gain on sale of mortgage loans held for sale
Gain on bargain purchase of MB Bancorp, Inc.
Other income
Total noninterest income
Noniterest Expense
Compensation and related benefits
Occupancy
Data processing
Advertising
Professional fees
Equipment
Foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets holding costs
Amortization of intangible assets
FDIC insurance premiums
Other
Total noninterest expense
Net income before tax
Income tax expense
Net income

228
231
770
(17)
21
3,285
418

177
88
159
(39)
122

4,936

507

6,071
1,039
868
20
876
270
111
155
39
1,123

4,580
448
548
55
516
285
63
113
60
798

10,572

7,466

8,994
1,349

3,338
865

$

7,645

$

2,473

Basic earnings per share

$

1.08

$

0.38

Diluted earnings per share

$

1.07

$

0.38

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

12/31/2019

12/31/2020

(In thousands)
$

Ne t income

7,645

$

2,473

O the r compre he nsive income
Unrealized gain on securities available for sale
Income tax relating to securities available for sale
Other comprehensive income
$

Total compre he nsive income

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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479
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(132)

(69)

347

181

7,992

$

2,654

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Balance, December 31, 2018

Unearned

Accumulated

employee stock

other

Common

Paid-in

ownership

T reasury

stock

capital

plan shares

stock

$

32

$ 10,848

$

(30)

Retained comprehensive
earnings

$ (1,979) $ 13,279

income (loss)

T otal

$ (167)

$ 21,983

Net Income

-

-

-

-

2,473

-

2,473

Equity from Kopernik merger

-

-

-

-

41,250

-

41,250

-

-

-

-

-

181

181

(41)

-

-

-

-

-

86

-

-

-

-

86

-

-

-

30

(1,979)

57,002

Change in unrealized holding
loss (net of tax of $69)
Shares Issued to M.H.C.

41

Employee Stock Option Plan

-

Employee Stock Ownership Plan
compensation including taxes

-

73

Balance, December 31, 2019

30

10,893

-

14

-

-

-

-

7,645

gains (net of tax of $132)

-

-

-

-

-

347

Employee Stock Option Plan

-

-

-

-

-

Net Income

-

66,003
7,645

Change in unrealized holding

Balance, December 31, 2020

$

26
73

$ 10,919

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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-

$ (1,979) $ 64,647

$ 361

347
26
$ 74,021

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
12/31/2019

12/31/2020

(In thousands)

C ash flows from ope rating activitie s
Net income

$

7,645

$

2,473

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Net amortization of discounts and premiums
Provision for loan losses

56

58

695

110

Loss (Gain) on sale of foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets
Write-downs of foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets
Originations of loans held for sale
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale
Gain on bargain purchase
Amortization of deferred loan fees/costs

17

39

4

59

(996)

-

695

-

(3,285)

-

(653)

61

Depreciation of premises and equipment

541

286

Amortization of intangible assets

155

115

Deferred tax expense

548

428

(272)

(159)

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance
Stock-based compensation expense

80

9

(Increase) decrease in accrued interest and other assets
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

(49)

(1,221)

(86)

(1,172)

5,024

1,157

Proceeds from maturities and calls of available for sale securities

5,500

3,000

Proceeds from maturities and calls of held to maturity securities

-

Net cash provided by operating activities
C ash flows from inve sting activitie s

Principal collected on mortgage-backed securities

400
1,852

5,921

Net decrease (increase) in loans

(6,132)

(667)

Purchase of premises and equipment

(375)

(473)

Proceeds from life insurance benefits

882

-

422

338

Proceeds from sale of foreclosed real estate
Proceeds from sale of Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

2,167

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stock

(1,833)

-

Cash paid for acquisitions

(83,838)

-

Net cash received in merger

109,917

19,318

32,631

23,793

Net cash provided by investing activities

25

C ash flows provide d by financing activitie s
Increase in official checks

(558)

830

Net increase in deposits

(450)

(6,375)

(Decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance

(292)

(340)

17

36

Stock options exercised
Proceeds from isuance of subordinated debt

35,000

-

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta

42,000

3,000

(47,000)

(3,000)

Repayments of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta
Net cash provided by financing activities
Ne t de cre ase in cash and cash e quivale nts

30,105

(7,237)

67,760

17,713

24,230

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
$

C ash and cash e quivale nts at e nd of ye ar

6,517

91,990

$

24,230

Supple me ntary cash flows information
Interest paid

$

2,824

$

1,759

Income taxes paid

$

1,206

$

118

$

146

$

546

Supple me ntary noncash transactions
Net loans transferred to foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets
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BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business
BV Financial, Inc. (the "Company") was organized as a federally chartered corporation at the direction of
BayVanguard Bank (the "Bank") in January 2005 to become the mid-tier stock holding company for BayVanguard Federal upon the completion of its reorganization into the mutual holding company form of
organization. Pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization, the Bank converted to stock form with all of its stock
owned by the Company and organized Bay-Vanguard, M.H.C. (the "M.H.C.") as a federally chartered
mutual holding company that owned 55% of the common stock of the Company. In February 2019, each
of the M.H.C. and the Company became a Maryland Chartered Corporation. In May 2013, the Company
issued 595,238 shares to the M.H.C. in connection with the acquisition of Vigilant Federal Savings Bank
("Vigilant") and in February 2019, the Company was converted to a Maryland Chartered Corporation and
issued 4,099,822 shares to the M.H.C. in connection with the acquisition of Kopernik Bank (“Kopernik”).
At December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the M.H.C. owned 86.55% of the common stock of the
Company.
BayVanguard Bank is headquartered in Baltimore, Maryland and is a community-oriented financial
institution offering traditional financial services to its local communities. The Bank is engaged primarily
in the business of attracting deposits from the general public and using such funds to originate one-to-four
family real estate, construction, multi-family, commercial real estate, farm, commercial and consumer
loans.
The Bank's deposits are insured up to the applicable legal limits by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation's Deposit Insurance Fund. BayVanguard Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank
System.
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and the Bank.
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

All

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation and Significant Estimates
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance sheet and revenues and expenses for the period. Actual
results could differ significantly from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible
to significant change in the near-term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the
assessment of other than temporary impairment of investment securities, goodwill and intangible asset
impairment, and the valuation of deferred tax assets.
Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the Company's activities are with customers located within the Baltimore metropolitan area and
the Eastern Shore of Maryland. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one
industry or customer.
Securities
The Company classifies investment securities as held to maturity or available for sale. Debt securities that
the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity and are
reported at amortized cost (including amortization of premiums or accretion of discounts). Net unrealized
F–7

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Securities (Continued)
gains and losses for debt securities classified as available for sale are recognized as increases or decreases
in other comprehensive income or loss, net of taxes, and excluded from the determination of net income.
Realized gains and losses on sales of securities are determined using the specific identification method and
are included in earnings. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest
method over the terms of the securities. Premiums and discounts on callable debt securities are amortized
through the earliest call date.
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and
more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1)
the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition
and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment
in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value or until
maturity. In analyzing the issuer's financial condition, management considers industry analysts' reports,
financial performance, and projected target prices of investment analysts.
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
Federal law requires a member institution of the Federal Home Loan Bank System to hold stock of its
district Federal Home Loan Bank (the “FHLB") in an amount determined by both asset size and borrowings
from the FHLB. Purchases and sales of stock are made directly with the FHLB at par value.
The Bank held $1,280,000 and $500,000 of FHLB restricted stock at December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019, respectively.
This restricted stock is carried at cost. Management evaluates whether this investment is impaired based
on their assessment of the ultimate recoverability of the investment rather than by recognizing temporary
declines in value. The determination of whether a decline affects the ultimate recoverability of the
investment is influenced by criteria such as (1) the significance of the decline in net assets of the FHLB as
compared to the capital stock amount for the FHLB and the length of time this situation has persisted, (2)
commitments by the FHLB to make payments required by law or regulation and (3) the impact of legislative
and regulatory changes on institutions and, accordingly, on the customer base of the FHLB.
Loans Receivable
Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principal balances, adjusted for premiums and discounts on loans
purchased, the undisbursed portion of loans in process, net deferred loan origination fees and costs, fair
value adjustments on loans acquired in a merger, and the allowance for loan losses. Interest income is
accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees and costs are deferred and recognized as an
adjustment to the yield of the related loans. The Company is amortizing these amounts over the contractual
life of the loan using the interest method. For purchased loans, the related premium or discount is recognized
over the contractual life of the purchased loan and is included as part of interest income. The accrual of
interest is generally discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or interest has become 90 days
past due or management has serious doubts about further collectability of principal or interest, even though
the loan is currently performing. A loan may remain on accrual status if it is in the process of collection
and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status, unpaid interest
credited to income is reversed. Interest received on nonaccrual loans generally is either applied against
principal or reported as interest income, according to management's judgment as to the collectability of
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BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Loans Receivable (Continued)
principal. Generally, loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has
performed in
accordance with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time and the ultimate collectability of the
total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. Interest payments on impaired loans are
recorded in the same manner as interest payments on nonaccrual loans.
Loans acquired in connection with business combinations are recorded at fair value with no carryover of
any allowance for loan losses. Fair value of the loans involves estimating the amount and timing of principal
and interest cash flows expected to be collected on the loans and discounting those cash flows at a market
rate of interest.
The excess of cash flows expected at acquisition over the estimated fair value is referred to as the accretable
discount and is recognized into interest income over the remaining life of the loan. The difference between
contractually required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition is
referred to as the nonaccretable discount. These loans are accounted for under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality ("ASC 310-30"). The nonaccretable discount includes
estimated future credit losses expected to be incurred over the life of the loan. Subsequent decreases in
expected cash flows will require the Company to evaluate the need for an addition to the allowance for loan
losses. Subsequent improvement in expected cash flows will result in the reversal of a corresponding
amount of the nonaccretable discount, which we will then be reclassified as accretable discount to be
recognized into interest income over the remaining life of the loan.
Loans acquired through business combinations that meet the specific criteria of ASC 310-30 are
individually evaluated each period to analyze expected cash flows. To the extent that the expected cash
flows of a loan have decreased due to credit deterioration, the Company establishes an allowance.
Loans acquired through business combinations that do not meet the specific criteria of ASC 310-30 are
accounted for under ASC 310-20, Receivables - Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs. These loans are
initially recorded at fair value, and include credit and interest rate marks associated with acquisition
accounting adjustments. Purchase premiums or discounts are subsequently amortized as an adjustment to
yield over the estimated contractual lives of the loans. An allowance for loan losses is recorded for any
credit deterioration in these loans subsequent to acquisition.
Acquired loans that meet the criteria for impairment or nonaccrual of interest prior to the acquisition may
be considered performing upon acquisition, regardless of whether the borrower is contractually delinquent
if the Company expects to fully collect the new carrying value (i.e., fair value) of the loans. At acquisition,
these loans may have discounts to adjust the loans to fair value. These discounts are considered
nonaccretable until the loan is paid in full, As such, the Company may no longer consider the loan to be
nonperforming and may accrue interest on these loans, including the impact of any accretable discount. In
addition, charge-offs on such loans would be first applied to the nonaccretable discount.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is established through provisions for loan losses charged against income.
Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses, and subsequent
recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.
The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level to provide for losses that are probable and can be
reasonably estimated. Management's periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on the
Company's past loan loss experience, known and inherent losses in the portfolio, adverse situations that
may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral, the composition
and size of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. This evaluation is
inherently subjective as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant change,
including the amounts and timing of future cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans.
Management reviews the allowance for loan losses on no less than a quarterly basis in order to identify the
inherent losses and to assess the overall collectability of the loan portfolio by reviewing the portfolio by
various segments. The evaluation process by portfolio segment includes, among other things, an analysis
of delinquency trends, nonperforming loan trends, the level of charge-offs and recoveries, prior loss
experience, total loans outstanding, the composition of the loan portfolio, the value of collateral securing
the loan, the borrower's ability to repay, repayment performance, and local economic conditions.
The establishment of the allowance for loan losses is significantly affected by management's judgment and
uncertainties, and there is a likelihood that different amounts would be reported under different conditions
or assumptions. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Maryland Office of the Commissioner
of Financial Regulation, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the allowance
for loan losses and may require the Company to make additional provisions for estimated loan losses based
upon judgments different from those of management.
The Company will continue to monitor and modify its allowance for loan losses as conditions dictate. No
assurances can be given that the level of the allowance for loan losses will cover all of the inherent losses
on the loans or that future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses will not be necessary if economic
and other conditions differ substantially from the economic and other conditions used by management to
determine the current level of the allowance for loan losses.
A loan is considered past due or delinquent when a contractual payment is not paid in the month that it is
due. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the
Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement.
Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and
the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience
insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management
determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the
delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in
relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for multifamily, commercial real estate, and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent.

F–10

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Mortgage Loans Held for sale
Mortgages originated for sale are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value based on the current
fair value of each outstanding loan. Sales of loans are recorded when the proceeds are received. Any gain
or loss is recorded in noninterest income.
The Company sells its mortgage loans to third-party investors servicing released. Upon sale and delivery,
loans are legally isolated from the Company and the Company has no ability to restrict or constrain the
ability of third-party investors to pledge or exchange the mortgage loans. The Company does not have the
entitlement or ability to repurchase the mortgage loans or unilaterally cause third party investors to put the
mortgage loans back to the Company.
Foreclosed Real Estate and Repossessed Assets
Foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets are composed of property acquired through a foreclosure
proceeding or acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure If the fair value of the asset, net of estimated
selling costs, is less than the related loan balance at the time of acquisition, a charge against the allowance
for loan losses is recorded. After foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and
the assets are carried at the lower of cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell. Revenues and expenses
from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in noninterest income and expenses.
Premises and Equipment
Land is stated at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective
assets. Expenditures for improvements are capitalized while costs for maintenance and repairs are expensed
as incurred.
Investment in Life Insurance
Investment in life insurance is reflected at the net cash surrender value to the Company.
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired.
Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually. Any impairment of goodwill would be recorded against
income in the period of impairment.
Intangible Assets
Intangible assets, consisting of core deposit intangibles, represent purchased assets that also lack physical
substance but can be distinguished from goodwill because of contractual or other legal rights or because
the asset is capable of being sold or exchanged on its own or in combination with a related contract, asset
or liability. Core deposit intangibles are amortized on an accelerated basis over a period of eight to ten
years. Any impairment of intangible assets would be recorded against income in the period of impairment.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred Income Taxes
Deferred income taxes are recognized for temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and
income tax basis of assets and liabilities based on enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such
amounts are realized or settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is more likely
than not that such amounts will be realized based on consideration of available evidence.
Statements of Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows include cash, federal funds sold and interest
bearing deposits in other banks. Federal funds are generally purchased and sold for one-day periods.
Transfers of Financial Assets
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered.
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when: (1) the assets have been isolated from
the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage
of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective
control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.
Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit. Such
financial instruments are recorded in the balance sheet when they are funded.
Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the appropriate period. Unearned shares under the BayVanguard Bank Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”) are not included in outstanding shares for earnings per share
purposes. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average shares
outstanding as adjusted for the dilutive effect of stock options based on the treasury stock method. As of
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had 51,950 and 54,950 shares, respectively of
unexercised stock options. Options with an exercise price greater than the average market price of the
common shares are excluded from the calculation as their effect would be anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Information related to the calculation of earnings per share is summarized as follows:

De ce mbe r 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Basic

Basic

Dilute d

Diluted

(In thousands, except per share data)
Net income

$

7,645

$

7,645

$

2,473

$

2,473

Weighted average common
7,102

shares outstanding

7,102

6,436

6,436

Dilutive securities
-

Stock options

24

-

25

Adjusted weighted average
7,102

shares outstanding
Earnings per share amount

$

1.08

7,126
$

1.07

6,461

6,436
$

0.38

$

0.38

Stock Based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock based compensation under the fair value method of accounting. For stock
options, the Company uses a Black-Scholes valuation model to measure stock-based compensation expense
at the date of grant. Compensation expense related to stock-based awards is recognized over the period
during which an individual is required to provide service in exchange for such award.
Reclassifications
Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period's presentation. Such
reclassifications had no effect on net income.
Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of
December 31, 2020, for items that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these consolidated
financial statements. This evaluation was conducted through March 17, 2021, the date these financial
statements were available to be issued.
On January 4, 2021, the Company paid in full the $4.1 million in senior subordinated debentures that had
been assumed in the acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares, Inc. Per the terms of the debentures, January 4,
2021 was the first opportunity to pay-off this debt after the acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares, Inc.
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NOTE 2 - MERGERS
Acquisition of MB Bancorp, Inc.
On February 29, 2020, the Company acquired MB Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Madison
Bank, a Maryland chartered stock savings bank located in Forest Hill, Maryland. Total consideration was
$29.9 Million, or $15.85 per MB Bancorp share. The combination was accounted for using the purchase
accounting method, and accordingly all assets and liabilities were recorded at their estimated fair value.
The bank recorded premiums of $2.7 million on assets and $1.1 million on liabilities. The Company also
recorded nonaccretable and accretable discounts, related to credit impairment in the loan portfolio, of
$265,000 and $1.2 million, respectively. In addition, the bank recorded an identifiable intangible asset
(core deposit intangible) totaling $196,000. The Company also recognized a gain on bargain purchase of
$3.3 million in the transaction. The gain on bargain purchase resulted from the price paid being less than
the net fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company recorded total assets of
$144.9 million and assumed liabilities of $111.7 million. Fair value adjustments of the assets and liabilities
are being amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related assets and liabilities. The credit
impairment adjustment will be periodically reevaluated.
A summary of the MB Bancorp transaction during the period ended December 31, 2020, follows:
PURC HASE O F MB BANC O RP
2/29/2020
(in thousands)
Fair Value of assets and liabilities acquired:
Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

Loans receivable

35,530
96,875

Premises and Equipment

5,009

Core deposit intangible

196

Investment in life insurance

4,120

Other Assets

3,159

Deposits

(94,752)

Borrowings

(15,852)

Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance

(202)

Other Liabilities

(887)

Gain on Bargain Purchase

(3,285)

Purchase Price

$

29,911

Acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares, Inc.
On October 31, 2020, BV Financial completed its acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares, Inc., and, its wholly
owned subsidiary, 1880 Bank, a Maryland chartered commercial bank located in Cambridge, MD. Total
consideration was $53.9 million or $8.90 per Delmarva Bancshares share in cash. The combination was
accounted for using the purchase accounting method, and accordingly all assets and liabilities were recorded
at their estimated fair value. The bank recorded premiums of $1.4 million on assets and $1.0 million on
liabilities and a discount on liabilities of $0.7 million. The Company also recorded non accretable and
accretable discounts, related to credit impairment in the loan portfolio, of $1.6 million and $2.8 million,
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NOTE 2 – MERGERS (CONTINUED)
respectively. In addition, the Company recorded goodwill of $11.7 million and an identifiable intangible
asset (core deposit intangible) totaling $215,000. The bank recorded total assets of $414.9 million and
assumed liabilities of $372.8 million. Fair value adjustments of the assets and liabilities are being amortized
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets and liabilities. The credit impairment adjustment will
be periodically reevaluated. A summary of the Delmarva Bancshares transaction during the period ended
December 31, 2020, follows:
PURC HASE O F DELMARVA BANC SHARES
10/31/2020
Fair Value of assets and liabilities acquired:

(in thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

Investment securities

74,387
38,787

Loans receivable

272,610

Premises and Equipment

4,805

Core deposit intangible

215

Investment in life insurance

14,740

Other Assets

9,464

Deposits

(362,919)

Borrowings

(6,655)

Other Liabilities

(3,221)

Goodwill

11,714

Purchase Price

$

53,927

Due to the recent closing of the transaction, management has not completed its determination of the fair
value of all assets and liabilities acquired from Delmarva Bancshares. The information in the table above
is subject to change as management completes its analysis. Any adjustment to the fair value of assets or
liabilities would be offset with an adjustment to goodwill.
Merger with Kopernik Bank
As of the close of business on February 28, 2019 the company merged Kopernik Bank with and into the
bank. Kopernik was a state chartered mutual savings bank located in Baltimore, Maryland. In accordance
with the terms of the transaction the company was required to issue 4,099,822 shares of stock to M.H.C..
The stock was issued based on Kopernik’s appraised value of $41,250,000 and an independent appraisal of
the Company’s stock value at the time of the transaction of $11.22 per share. The combination was
accounted for using the purchase accounting method, and accordingly all assets and liabilities were recorded
at their estimated fair value. The bank recorded premiums of $491,000 on assets and $487,000 on liabilities.
The Company also recorded nonaccretable and accretable discounts, related to credit impairment in the loan
portfolio, of $388,000 and $831,000, respectively. In addition the bank recorded goodwill totaling
$996,000 and identifiable intangibles (core deposit intangible) totaling $1,305,000. The bank recorded total
assets of $139.4 million and assumed liabilities of $98.2 million. Fair value adjustments of the assets and
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NOTE 2 – MERGERS (CONTINUED)
liabilities are being amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related assets and liabilities. The credit
impairment adjustment will be periodically reevaluated. A summary of the Kopernik transaction during
the period ended December 31, 2019, follows:
(in t housands)
Fair Value of asset s and liabilit ies acquired:
Cash and cash equivalent s

$19,318

Securit ies held t o mat urit y

12

Loans receivable

111,026

P remises and equipment

1,545

Core deposit int angible

1,305

Goodwill

996

Invest ment in life insurance

2,059

Ot her asset s

2,786

Foreclosed real est at e

374

Deposit s

(93,044)

Advance payment s by borrowers for t axes and insurance

(1,178)

Ot her liabilit ies

(3,949)

Appraised Value of Kopernik (recorded in ret ained earnings)

$

41,250

Merger expenses totaled $592,000 and $139,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.
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NOTE 3 – SECURITIES
Securities available for sale at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, consisted of the following:
Amortized

unrealized

unrealized

Fair

cost

gains

losses

value

December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Available for sale
$

Corporate Securities

750

$

31,215

Mortgage-backed securities
$

-

$

1

$

31,965

$

500

$

4,000

$

-

$

749
31,714

1

500

2

$

32,463

6

$

3,994

December 31, 2019
Available for sale
U.S. government agency securities

$

4,330

Mortgage-backed securities
$

8,330

$

53

4,355

28

53
$

34

$

8,349

The company has pledged securities with an amortized cost of $18.1 million and a fair value of $19.0
million at December 31, 2020 to secure deposits from municipalities. At December 31, 2019, the
Company had no securities that were pledged.
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NOTE 3 – SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY AT DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019, CONSISTED OF
THE FOLLOWING:
Gross

Gross

Amortized

Unrealized

Unrealized

Fair

Cost

Gains

Losses

Value

December 31, 2020

(in thousands)
Held to maturity
$

Other Securities

4,667

$

-

2,799

Mortgage Backed Securities
$

$

-

96

7,466

$

-

$

96

$

4,667

$

7,561

1
$

1

2,894

December 31, 2019
Held to maturity
U.S. Govt Agency

$

Mortgage Backed Securities

3,956
$
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NOTE 3 – SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
The amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31, 2020, by contractual maturity, are
shown below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because the securities may be
called or prepaid with or without prepayment penalties.

Available for sale

Held to maturity

Amortized

Fair

Amortized

Fair

cost

value

cost

value

De ce mbe r 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Maturing
Due under one year

$

2,830

$

8,611

Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years
$

2,836

$

-

8,698

$

-

83

83

4,184

4,286

388

391

16,340

16,643

6,995

7,087

31,965

$

32,463

$

Available for sale

7,466

$

7,561

Held to maturity

Amortized

Fair

Amortized

Fair

cost

value

cost

value

De ce mbe r 31, 2019

(In thousands)
Maturing
Due under one year

$

1,000

$

1,000

$

-

$

-

Due after one year through five years

3,000

2,995

121

121

Due after five years through ten years

2,410

2,443

110

108

1,920

Due after ten years
$

8,330

1,911
$

8,349

3,725
$

3,956

3,802
$

4,031

All mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed by Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae or Ginnie Mae backed
securities.
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Investment securities with unrealized losses for continuous periods of less than 12 months and 12 months
or longer are as follows:

Over 12 months

Less than 12 months

T otal

Unrealized

Fair

Unrealized

Fair

Unrealized

Fair

losses

value

losses

value

losses

value

December 31, 2020

(In thousands)
Available for sale
U.S. government agency securities

$

Corposate securities

$

1

-

$

749

$

2

$

-

-

$

-

$

1

$

-

$

749

1

-

-

327

1

Mortgage-backed securities

$

$

$

1,076

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

$

251

2

327
$

1,076

$

-

$

251

Held to maturity
Other securities

$

-

$

-

$

Less than 12 months
Unrealized
Fair
December 31, 2019

losses

1

Over 12 months
Unrealized
Fair

value

$

1

T otal
Fair
Unrealized

value

losses

251

1

251

1

-

-

Mortgage-backed securities

-

losses

value

(In thousands)
Available for sale
U.S. government agency securities

$

-

$

-

6

-

-

Mortgage-backed securities

$

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

$

-

$

$

-

$

-

34

$

6

2,957

28

$

3,994

$

2,957

28

$

6,951

$

$

-

$

$

2,130

34

3,994

$

6,951

$

-

$

2,130

Held to maturity
U.S. government agency securities

$

16

-

2,130

16

2,130

16

-

-

Mortgage-backed securities

-

$

16

Management has the ability and intent to hold these investment securities until maturity. The decline in
fair value is the result of changes in interest rates, not a deterioration of the credit standing of the issuers.
Since no loss is expected on these securities, no impairment has been recorded.
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE
Loans receivable at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, consisted of the following:

2020

2019

(In t housands)
Real Est at e Loans:
$

One t o four family - owner occupied

199,493

$

90,335

One t o four family - non-owner occupied

86,967

54,653

Commercial owner occupied

93,749

27,302

108,425

27,012

Const ruct ion and land

24,134

12,216

Farm Loans

17,892

-

Marine Loans

10,561

9,642

5,397

2,832

Commercial invest or

Ot her Consumer
Guarant eed by t he U.S. Government

44,160

8,923

Commercial

18,925

3,268

609,703

236,183

(789)

Deferred Originat ion (Fees) Cost s, net

304

(1,841)

Allowance for loan losses

$

T ot al loans receivable, net

607,073

(1,293)

$

235,194

Residential lending repayment is generally dependent on economic and market conditions in the Company's
lending area. Commercial real estate, commercial and construction loan repayments are generally
dependent on the operations of the related properties or the financial condition of its borrower or guarantor.
Accordingly, repayment of such loans can be more susceptible to adverse conditions in the real estate
market and the regional economy.
The majority of the Company's loans receivable are secured by residential and commercial real estate
properties located in Maryland. Loans are extended only after evaluation by management of a customer's
creditworthiness and other relevant factors on a case-by-case basis. The Company generally does not lend
more than 90% of the appraised value of a property and usually requires private mortgage insurance on
residential mortgages with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80%. In some instances, the Company has lent
up to 90% of the appraised value of a property through a combination of first and second mortgages without
requiring private mortgage insurance. The Company originates and purchases marine loans up to a
maximum of 90% of the value of the boat. In addition, the Company generally obtains personal guarantees
of repayment from borrowers and/or others for construction, commercial and multi-family residential loans
and disburses the proceeds of construction and similar loans only as work progresses on the related projects.
Guaranteed by the U.S. Government loans in the table above include $36.5 million of Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP) loans. The PPP loans are 100% guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (SBA).
A substantial portion of these loans in the Company’s portfolio as of December 31, 2020, are expected to
be forgiven by the SBA.
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A summary of transactions in the allowance for loan losses during the year ended December 31, 2020,
follows:
(In thousands)
One-to four
Family
Family
Owner
Non-owner
Occupied
Allowance
Beginning balance
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provision

Occupied

Commercial
Owner
Occupied

Construction &

Investor

Land

$

154 $
(10)
16
63

685 $
(289)
147
(41)

157 $
146

126 $
435

Ending balance

$

223 $

502 $

303 $

561 $

Ending balance individually
evaluated for impairment

$

33 $

59 $

Ending balance collectively
evaluated for impairment

$

190 $

443 $

303 $

$

4,894 $

1,432 $

4,941 $

-

Farm

-

-

25

$

63

-

88

-

$

-

561 $

Marine

-

88

-

-

US Govt
Guarantee

19 $

UnalloCommercial

-

$

19

30
(24)
13
92

38 $

111

-

$

-

$

Other
Consumer

-

38 $

-

111

-

-

cated

5 $

10

92 $
(92)

15

$

1,841

$

92

$

1,749

$

13,874

-

$

Total

15

1,293
(323)
176
695

Financing receivables:
Ending balance individually
evaluated for impairment

1,606

-

$

899

102

-

-

-

Ending balance collectively
evaluated for impairment
Ending balance

$

194,599

85,535

88,808

106,819

24,134

16,993

10,459

5,397

44,160

18,925

199,493 $

86,967 $

93,749 $

108,425 $

24,134 $

17,892 $

10,561 $

5,397 $

44,160 $

18,925 $ -
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
A summary of transactions in the allowance for loan losses during the year ended December 31, 2019,
follows:
(In thousands)
One-to-four
family
Owner
Nonowner
occupied
occupied
Allowance
Beginning balance
Charge offs
Recoveries
Provision (credit)

$

Commercial
Owner
Occupied
Invester

Construction
& Land

285 $
(58)
16
(89)

871 $
(578)
60
332

143 $
(47)
61

165 $
57
(96)

157 $

126 $

-

-

Ending balance

$

154 $

685 $

Ending balance individually
evaluated for impairment

$

47 $

52 $

$

107 $

633 $

157 $

126 $

$

3,261 $

1,508 $

348 $

-

$

$

Farm

7 $

$

18

-

25 $

-

$

$

-

$

25 $

-

$

$

-

$

-

-

Other
consumer

Marine

US Govt
UnGuarantee Commercial Allocated

83 $
(64)

35 $
(75)
16.00
54

-

19 $

30 $

-

$

$

-

$

19 $

30 $

-

$

- $

31 $

-

$

$

-

-

- $

-

Total

27 $
(22)

176 $
(84)

1,792
(758)
149
110

5 $

92 $

1,293

$

99

92 $

1,194

$

5,148

-

$

-

Ending balance collectively
evaluated for impairment

5 $

Loans
Ending balance individually
evaluated for impairment

$

-

-

$

-

Ending balance collectively
evaluated for impairment

87,074
$ 90,335 $

27,012

53,145

26,954

54,653 $

27,302 $ 27,012 $

12,216

-

12,216 $

-

$

9,642

2,801

8,923

9,642 $

2,832 $

8,923 $ 3,268 $

3,268

-

231,035

-

$ 236,183

For purchase loans acquired that are not deemed impaired at acquisition, credit marks representing losses
expected over the life of the loans are a component of the initial fair value. Subsequent to the purchase
date, the method utilized to estimate the required allowance for loan losses for these loans is similar as that
for originated loans. The Company will only record a provision for loan losses when the required allowance
exceeds any remaining credit mark. The differences between the initial fair value and the unpaid principal
balance at the date of acquisition are recorded as interest income over the life of the loans. The following
table presents changes in the credit mark accretable yield, which includes income recognized from
contractual interest cash flows, for the years ended December 31:

2020

2019

Balance at January 1

($910)

($187)

From acquisitions

(3,781)

(831)

253

108

($4,438)

($910)

(dollars in thousands)

Accretion
Balance at December 31,
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
In addition to the accretable credit quality adjustment, the Company recorded non-accretable credit quality
adjustments on purchased impaired loans. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, these non-accretible credit
quality adjustments totaled $2.5 million and $598,000. respectively. Premiums on acquired loans related
to the interest rate and maturities of the performing loans in the portfolios were also recognized. As of
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019, the remaining premium, which will be amortized into income over
the lives of these loans, was $2.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively. The contractual and carrying
balances of acquired loans at December 31, 2020 was $422.1 million and $417.8 million, respectively. The
contractual and carrying balances of acquired loans at December 31, 2019 was $106.3 million and $105.3
million, respectively.
The Company's policies, consistent with regulatory guidelines, provide for the classification of loans and
other assets that are considered to be of lesser quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assets. A loan is
considered substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the
obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Substandard loans include those loans characterized by the
distinct possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Loans
classified as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard with the added
characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently
existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. Loans (or portions of loans)
classified as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as assets
is not warranted. Loans that do not expose the Company to risk sufficient to warrant classification in one
of the aforementioned categories, but which possess potential weaknesses that deserve close attention, are
required to be designated as special mention.
Determinations as to the classification of loans and the amount of loss allowances are subject to review by
our regulators, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Maryland Office of the Commissioner
of Financial Regulation, which can require that we establish additional loss allowances. The Company
regularly reviews its loan portfolio to determine whether any loans require classification in accordance with
applicable regulations.
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
The following table summarizes the classification of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2020:
December 31, 2020
(In thousands)
Special
Pass

Mention

Substandard

Doubtful

Total

Real estate
One to four family - owner occupied

$

198,892 $

-

$

601 $

-

$

199,493

One to four family - non-owner occupied

83,523

-

3,444

-

86,967

Commercial owner occupied

91,884

-

1,865

-

93,749

104,910

-

3,515

-

108,425

Construction and land

23,531

-

603

-

24,134

Farm Loans

16,994

-

898

-

17,892

519,734

-

10,926

-

530,660

10,561

-

-

-

10,561

5,349

-

48

-

5,397

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

44,160

-

-

-

44,160

Commercial

18,925

-

-

-

18,925

78,995

-

48

-

79,043

10,974 $

-

Commercial investor

Total Real Estate Loans

Marine Loans
Other Consumer

Total consumer and commercial
Total loans

$

598,729 $
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
The following table summarizes classification of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2019:
December 31, 2019
(In thousands)
Special
Pass

Mention

Substandard

Doubtful

Total

Real estate
One to four family - owner occupied

$

89,589 $

-

$

746 $

-

$

90,335

One to four family - non-owner occupied

51,965

1,293

1,395

-

54,653

Commercial owner occupied

26,199

610

493

-

27,302

Commercial investor

26,421

591

-

-

27,012

Construction and land

11,962

-

254

-

12,216

-

-

-

-

-

2,494

2,888

-

211,518

Farm Loans
Total real estate loans

206,136

Marine Loans

9,642

-

-

-

9,642

Other Consumer

2,817

-

15

-

2,832

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

8,923

-

-

-

8,923

Commercial

3,217

51

-

-

3,268

24,599

51

15

-

24,665

2,545 $

2,903 $

-

Total consumer and commercial
Total loans

$

230,735 $
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
The following tables set forth certain information with respect to our loan portfolio delinquencies by loan
class:
De ce mbe r 31, 2020
(In thousands)
Greater than
30-59 days 60-89 days
past due

Greater than

90 days

T otal

past due

past due

839
198
3,515

4,778

-

2,696

66

898

437
1,248

1,179

5,450

past due

T otal

90 days and

Current

loans

accruing

$ 3,899

$ 195,594

$ 199,493

316

86,651

86,967

-

88,971

93,749

-

105,729

108,425

-

23,697
16,644

24,134
17,892

-

13,374

517,286

530,660

-

Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied
One to four family - non-owner occupied

$ 2,127

$

118

933

Commercial owner occupied

1,083

180

Commercial investor

2,696

-

Construction and land
Farm Loans
T otal real estate loans

$

-

371
350

-

6,745

$

-

Marine Loans

77

-

-

77

10,484

10,561

-

Other Consumer

75

24

56

155

5,242

5,397

-

-

44,160
18,925

44,160
18,925

-

56

232

78,811

79,043

-

5,506

$ 13,606

$ 596,097

$ 609,703

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government
Commercial
T otal consumer and commercial
T otal loans

-

-

152
$ 6,897

24

$

1,203

$

$

-

December 31, 2019
(In thousands)
Greater than
30-59 days 60-89 days
past due

past due

Greater than

90 days

T otal

past due

past due

T otal

90 days and

Current

loans

accruing

Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

$ 1,468

$

-

228

$ 1,696

$ 88,639

$ 90,335

One to four family - non-owner occupied

301

101

$

206

608

54,045

54,653

Commercial owner occupied

-

118

-

118

27,184

27,302

-

$

50

Commercial investor

-

-

-

-

27,012

27,012

-

Construction and land
Farm Loans

226
-

339
-

-

565
-

11,651
-

12,216
-

-

1,995

558

434

2,987

208,531

211,518

9,642

9,642

-

2,802

2,832

-

8,923
3,268

8,923
3,268

-

30

24,635

24,665

-

$ 3,017

$ 233,166

$ 236,183

T otal real estate loans
Marine Loans
Other Consumer
Guaranteed by the U.S. Government
Commercial
T otal consumer and commercial
T otal loans

-

-

16

14

-

-

-

$ 2,011

14

16
$

572
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
The following is a summary of nonaccrual loans by class as of the dates indicated:

12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

$

One to four family - non-owner occupied
Commercial owner occupied

840

$

695

355

334

3,515

119

Commercial investor

-

-

Construction and land

-

-

Farm Loans

899

-

5,609

T otal real estate loans

1,148

-

Marine Loans

48

Other Consumer

-

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

Commercial

-

48

T otal consumer and commercial loans

T otal nonaccrual loans

$

5,657

-

$

1,148

Interest that would have been accrued under the terms of the nonaccrual loans was approximately $32,000
at December 31, 2020, and $68,000 at December 31, 2019.
At December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company had $0 and $50,000 in residential mortgages
in the process of foreclosure.
An impaired loan generally is one for which it is probable, based on current information, that the lender
will not collect all the amounts due under the contractual terms of the loan. Loans are individually evaluated
for impairment. When the Company classifies a problem loan as impaired, it records an impairment for
that portion of the asset that is deemed uncollectible, based on the present value of the expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate or based on the fair value of the collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent.
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
The following is a summary of impaired loans by class of loans as of December 31, 2020:

W ith an allowance re corde d

Average

Interest

Recorded

Unpaid

Related

Recorded

Income

Investment

Principal

Allowance

Investment

Recognized

$

$

$

Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

$

216

$

216

One to four family - non-owner occupied

935

935

Commercial owner occupied

-

-

33
59

344

11

1,402

-

46

-

-

Commercial investor

-

-

-

-

-

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

-

-

-

Marine Loans

-

-

-

-

Other Consumer

-

-

-

-

-

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

-

1,151

1,151

4,678

4,678

497

Commercial owner occupied

-

1,746

57

-

3,545

194

528

-

809

8

4,941

4,987

-

1,429

61

Commercial investor

1,606

1,606

-

2,135

17

Construction and land

-

-

-

Farm Loans

899

92

W ith no allowance re corde d
Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied
One to four family - non-owner occupied

Marine Loans

899

-

-

-

-

-

-

574

-

-

-

-

Other Consumer

102

102

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

-

3

Commercial

-

-

-

-

-

12,723

12,800

-

8,545

283

53

Total
Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

4,894

4,894

33

3,889

205

One to four family - non-owner occupied

1,432

1,463

59

2,211

54

Commercial owner occupied

4,941

4,987

-

1,429

61

Commercial investor

1,606

1,606

-

2,135

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

17
-

899

899

-

574

-

Marine Loans

-

-

-

-

-

Other Consumer

102

102

-

53

3

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

-

$

13,874
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The following is a summary of impaired loans by class of loans as of December 31, 2019:

Recorded
With an allowance recorded

Investment

Unpaid

Related

Principal

Allowance

Average

Interest

Recorded

Income

Investment

Recognized

Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

225 $

225 $

34 $

One to four family - non-owner occupied

$

960

960

65

339 $

Commercial owner occupied

-

-

-

Commercial investor

-

-

-

-

-

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

-

-

-

-

-

Marine Loans

-

-

-

Other Consumer

-

-

-

-

-

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

-

1,185

1,185

3,036

3,036

One to four family - non-owner occupied

548

Commercial owner occupied

348

1,425

11
59

64

-

-

1,828

70

-

3,486

121

724

-

563

13

394

-

591

-

99

With no allowance recorded
Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

Commercial investor

-

-

-

-

-

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

-

-

-

-

-

Marine Loans

-

-

-

-

-

Other Consumer

31

31

-

48

2

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

-

3,963

4,185

-

4,688

136

One to four family - owner occupied

3,261

3,261

34

3,825

132

One to four family - non-owner occupied

1,508

1,684

65

1,988

72

Commercial owner occupied

348

394

-

655

-

Commercial investor

-

-

-

-

-

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

-

-

-

-

-

Marine Loans

-

-

-

-

-

Total
Real estate loans

Other Consumer

31

31

-

48

2

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

-

$

F–30

5,148 $

5,370 $

99 $

6,516

$

206

BV FINANCIAL, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
Loans may be periodically modified in a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) to make concessions to help
a borrower remain current and/or to avoid foreclosure. Generally, we do not forgive principal or interest
on a loan or modify the interest rate on loans to below market rates. When we modify loans in a TDR, we
evaluate any possible impairment similar to other impaired loans. If we determine that the value of the
modified loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan, impairment is recognized. The Company
has no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans have been modified.
The status of TDRs as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, follows:
De ce mbe r 31, 2020
Number of
contracts

recorded investment
Performing

T otal

Nonperforming
(In thousands)

Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

36

$

4,054

$

-

$

4,054

One to four family - non-owner occupied

9

1,077

Commercial owner occupied real estate

4

1,426

-

1,426

Commercial investor real estate

1

1,606

-

1,606

58

1,135

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

-

-

-

-

Marine Loans

2

54

-

54

Other Consumer

-

-

-

-

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

52

$

8,217

$

58

$

8,275

December 31, 2019
recorded investment

Number of
contracts

Performing

T otal

Nonperforming
(In thousands)

Real estate loans
One to four family - owner occupied

21

$

2,566

$

93

$

2,659

One to four family - non-owner occupied

9

1,173

-

1,173

Commercial owner occupied real estate

1

229

-

229

Commercial investor real estate

-

-

-

-

Construction and land

-

-

-

-

Farm Loans

-

-

-

Marine Loans

1

31

-

31

Other Consumer

-

-

-

-

Guaranteed by the U.S. Government

-

-

-

-

Commercial

-

-

-

-

32
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NOTE 4 – LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)
There were no TDRs modified during the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019
respectively. The Company acquired TDRs in the Kopernik, MB Bancorp and Delmarva transactions. The
Company continues to designate them as TDRs for financial reporting.
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business
to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments are limited to commitments to
originate loans and unused lines of credit and involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess
of the amount recognized on the balance sheet. The Company's exposure to credit loss from
nonperformance by the other party to the above mentioned financial instruments is represented by the
contractual amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. The Company
generally requires collateral or other security to support financial instruments with off-balance sheet credit
risk.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Letters of credit are commitments issued to
guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party.
12/31/2020

Amounts representing credit risk

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
$

Construction loan commitments

14,233

$

6,148

Unused lines of credit

45,521

8,720

Mortgage and consumer loan commitments

10,440

2,479

T otal
Letters of Credit

$

70,194

$

17,347

$

2,166

$

1,361

NOTE 5 – PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are summarized by major
classification as follows:
Useful life
12/31/2020

in years

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
Land

-

Buildings

$

Leasehold improvements

5 - 10

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment

3,718

$

11,815

15 - 40
3 - 10

5,102

301

243

2,156

1,420
8,126

17,990

(2,291)

(2,508)

Accumulated depreciation
$

1,361

15,482

$

5,835

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019, was $541,000 and
$286,000, respectively.
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NOTE 6 – GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
In October 2020, the Company acquired Delmarva Bancshares and its subsidiary, 1880 Bank. As a result
of this transaction, the Company and the Bank recorded goodwill totaling $11.7 million and a core
deposit intangible of $215,000. The goodwill and core deposit intangible are not deductible for tax
purposes due to the structure of the transaction. The core deposit intangible is being amortized over eight
to ten years. The goodwill and core deposit intangible are evaluated annually for impairment.
In February 2020, the Company acquired MB Bancorp, Inc. As a result of this transaction, the bank
recorded a core deposit intangible of $196,000 and the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase
of $3.3 million. The core deposit intangible is not deductible for tax purposes due to the structure of the
transaction. The core deposit intangible is being amortized over ten years. The core deposit intangible is
evaluated annually for impairment.
In February 2019, the BayVanguard Bank merged with Kopernik Bank, As a result of this transaction,
the bank recorded goodwill totaling $996,000 and a core deposit intangible of $1.3 million. The goodwill
and core deposit intangible are not deductible for tax purposes due to the structure of the transaction. The
core deposit intangible is being amortized over ten years. The goodwill and core deposit intangible are
evaluated annually for impairment.
In May 2013, the Company acquired Vigilant Federal Savings Bank. As a result of this transaction, the
Company recorded goodwill totaling $120,000 and a core deposit intangible totaling $66,000. The
goodwill and core deposit intangible are not deductible for tax purposes due to the structure of the
transaction. The core deposit intangible is being amortized over ten years. The goodwill and core deposit
intangible are evaluated annually for impairment.
The activity in acquired intangible assets related to the mergers for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
ended December 31, 2019, is as follows:
12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
$

Net carrying amount at beginning of period

1,213

$

0

Core Deposit Intangible From the Kopernik merger

23
1,305

Core Deposit Intangible From the MB Bamcorp acquisition

196

0

Core Deposit Intangible From the Delmarva Bancshares acquisitiom

215

0

(155)

(115)

Amortization
$

Net carrying amount at end of the period

1,469

$

At December 31, 2020, future estimated annual amortization expense is as follows (in thousands):
Year ending
2021

$

182

2022

182

2023

182

2024

179

T hereafter through 2030

744
$
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NOTE 7 – DEPOSITS
Deposits are summarized as follows:
12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
$

Noninterest-bearing checking accounts

151,087

$

21,498

91,599

Interest-bearing checking accounts

12,593

90,008

29,934

Savings accounts

168,262

75,590

Certificates of deposit

174,140

78,207

Money market accounts

$

675,096

$

217,822

Interest expense on deposits for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, is
summarized as follows:
12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
$

Interest-bearing checking accounts

20

$

27

Money market accounts

198

89

Savings accounts

119

188

1,962

1,324

Certificates of deposit
$

2,299

$

At December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Bank had $30.7 million and $3.2 million in certificates
of deposit of $250,000 or more, respectively. Deposits in excess of $250,000 may not be insured by the
FDIC.
At December 31, 2020 scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows (in thousands):
Year ending June 30,
2021

$

92,475

2022

42,494

2023

20,454

2024

10,380

2025 and t hereaft er

8,337
$
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NOTE 8 – BORROWINGS
A summary of the Company’s borrowings at December 31 for the years indicated is as follows:

2019

2020
Dollars in thousands

Balance

Maturity

Rate

Balance

Rate

1.78%

Federal Home Loan Bank Advance

2021

3,000

1.78%

$3,000

Federal Home Loan Bank Advance

2028

10,000

1.76%

-

-

BV Financial Inc. Series 2020 Notes

2030

35,000

4.88%

-

-

Delmarva 2015 Senior Notes

2025

4,100

7.00%

-

-

Easton Capital T rust I

2034

3,093 LIBOR+2.85%

-

-

T otal

$

$55,193

Less: debt issuance costs
Add: net fair value adjustments on acquired borrowings

$3,000

(738)

-

200

-

$54,655

$3,000

The Bank has an agreement under a blanket floating lien with the FHLB providing the Bank a line of credit
of up to 25% of its total assets limited to the lendable collateral value of qualified assets the Bank has to
pledge to support its borrowings. At December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Bank had credit
availability of $85.7 million and $47.3 million, respectively. At December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019, the Bank had a $13.0 million and $3.0 million in FHLB advances outstanding, respectively.
Additionally, at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Bank had $40.0 million and $0 in
unfunded letters of credit used to secure municipal deposits outstanding against the FHLB line of credit.
The two advances comprising the 2028 maturity bucket were assumed in the acquisition of MB Bancorp,
Inc. and have a combined Fair Market Value premium of $736,000 at December 31, 2020. The Bank is
required to maintain qualified mortgage loans as collateral for its FHLB advances and letters of credit in
an amount equal to 100% of the outstanding advances. As of December 31,2020 and December 31, 2019,
the Bank had pledged $124.0 million and $50.33 million of loans to the FHLB for advances. Additionally,
at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the bank had a $10.0 million and $2.0 million, respectively
unsecured demand line of credit facility with a correspondent bank, which had no outstanding balance. In
2019, the Bank would have been required to pledge securities in its portfolio to receive advances under this
line of credit. The current facility has no such requirement.
The BV Financial Inc. Series 2020 notes were issued on October 21, 2020 the proceeds were used in the
purchase of Delmarva Bancshares and to retire the Delmarva 2015 Senior notes on January 4, 2021, the
first payment date after the acquisition. The interest rate on these notes is fixed for the first five years at
4.875% and then will reset quarterly to an interest rate per annum equal to the then current three-month
term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) (provided, however that in the event the three-month
SOFR is less than zero, three-month term SOFR shall be deemed to be zero) plus 472 basis points, payable
quarterly in arrears. The Company may begin redeeming these notes on the December 30, 2025 payment
date. Issuance costs of $738,000 at December 31, 2020 are being amortized into expense on a monthly
basis.
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The Delmarva 2015 Senior Notes were issued on June 30, 2015 by Delmarva Bancshares and were used to
refinance higher rate debt. The Company paid off these notes on January 4, 2021.
The Easton Capital Trust Junior subordinated Notes were issued by Easton Bank & Trust and assumed by
Delmarva Bancshares, Inc. on July 15, 2015 and then assumed by the Company on October 31, 2020. The
Company assumed $3,000,000 of junior subordinated debt of Easton Capital Trust I, to fully and
unconditionally guarantee the preferred securities issued by the Easton Trust. These long‐term obligations,
which qualify as Tier 1 capital, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by the Company of the Easton
Capital Trust obligations. The junior subordinated debt will mature on February 8, 2034, but may called no
earlier than February 8, 2009, if certain conditions, including regulatory approvals, are met. The junior
subordinated debentures, which are the only assets of the trust, are subordinate to all present and future
senior indebtedness of the Company. The junior subordinated debt accrues interest at a floating rate equal
to the 3‐month LIBOR plus 2.85%, payable quarterly. The quarterly interest rate on the debentures was
3.06% at December 31, 2020. The quarterly distributions on the preferred securities will be paid at the same
rate that interest is paid on the junior subordinated debentures. In accordance with ASC 810‐10‐15‐14
“Consolidation‐Overall‐Scope and Scope Exceptions,” the Company did not eliminate through
consolidation the Company’s $93,000 equity investment in Easton Capital Trust I. Instead, the Company
reflected this equity investment in the “Other assets” line item in the consolidated balance sheet.
In conjunction with the Company’s acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares, the Delmarva 2015 Senior notes
have a fair market value premium of $203,000. The Easton Capital Trust I Notes have a fair market value
discount of $739,000. The premium on the Delmarva 2015 notes was accreted into income upon payoff in
January 2021. The discount on the Easton capital notes is being amortized as an adjustment to yield on a
monthly basis.
NOTE 9 – PROFIT SHARING AND DEFERRED COMPENSATION AGREEMENTS
The Bank has a profit sharing plan and a 401(k) plan for all eligible employees. Contributions to the plans
are discretionary by the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019, and expenses of $47,000 and $38,100 were incurred for the 401(k) plan, respectively. In the year
ended December 2020, the Company accrued $200,000 for the profit-sharing plan. There were no expenses
for the profit-sharing plan in 2019.
The Company has supplemental executive retirement agreements with four retired executive officers.
Under the agreements, each executive will receive a stated annual benefit in monthly installments. All
executives covered by these agreements are receiving benefits under the terms of the agreements. During
the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, benefits of $246,000 and $245,000 were paid
in accordance with the agreements.
The Company has supplemental retirement agreements with certain directors. Under the agreements, each
director will receive a stated annual benefit in monthly installments for ten years following his or her
separation from service after attaining a normal retirement age of 70. If the director separates either
voluntarily or involuntarily from service prior to reaching his or her normal retirement age, the director will
receive an unreduced lump sum of the accrued liability balance (i.e., the amount accrued to fund the future
benefit expense under the agreement) within thirty days of the separation from service. Upon a change in
control, the director will receive a stated annual benefit in monthly installments for ten years following the
change in control. If the director dies while actively serving as a director, the director's beneficiary will
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receive an unreduced lump sum of the accrued liability balance within thirty days of the director's death. If
the director dies after monthly payments have commenced under the agreement, the director's beneficiary
will receive the remaining installments in monthly payments in accordance with the schedule of payments
due to the director.
The Company agreed to maintain post-retirement agreements with two former directors of Vigilant. The
agreements call for the Company to pay the premiums for supplemental health insurance for the directors
and their spouses for life.
The Company has entered into salary continuation agreements with the Co-CEOs of the Company. Under
these agreements, the executives will receive a stated annual benefit in monthly installments for 15 years
following separation from service subject to service time and age. If the executive dies after monthly
payments have commenced under the agreement, the executive's beneficiary will receive the present value
of the remaining installments.
The accrued liabilities for the executive retirement agreements were $2.5 million and $2.6 million and for
the director retirement agreements were $327,000 and $202,000 at December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019, respectively. The Company recognized compensation expense related to these plans in the amount
of $198,000 and $160,000 during the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.
Accounting standards require the recognition of a liability and related compensation costs for endorsement
split-dollar life insurance policies that provide a benefit to an employee that extends to post-retirement
periods. Bank-owned life insurance policies purchased for this purpose do not effectively settle the
Company's obligation to the employee in this regard and thus the Company records a benefit cost and a
related liability. As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Company has recorded a liability
of $2.0 million and $48,000, respectively, for this benefit. The increase from 2019 to 2020 is due to
liabilities assumed in the acquisition of Delmarva Bancshares.
NOTE 10 – COMMON STOCK AND EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN
At the same time as the reorganization in 2005, the Bank established an ESOP for its employees. On
January 12, 2005, the ESOP acquired 103,684 shares of the Company's common stock with funds provided
by a loan from the Company. Accordingly, $1.0 million of common stock acquired by the ESOP was
shown as a reduction of stockholders' equity. The ESOP loan was scheduled to be repaid principally from
the Bank's contributions to the ESOP in 15 equal annual installments through 2020 and bears interest at the
rate of five and one quarter percent (5.25%). The loan was paid off in March 2019 and the shares in the
plan are fully allocated to participants. The Bank recognized compensation expense as shares are
committed for release from collateral at their fair market value. Dividends on allocated shares are recorded
as a reduction of retained earnings and dividends on unallocated shares are recorded as a reduction of debt.
The Company recognized $0 and $50,000 of compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019, respectively. The ESOP held the common stock in a trust for allocation among
participating employees. All shares were allocated to participants as of December 31, 2019.
NOTE 11 – EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
On March 21, 2012, the Company granted stock options covering 10,000 shares of common stock to an
officer of the Company, of which 5,000 and 5,000 were exercisable at December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019, respectively. The options were granted with an exercise price at the then fair market value of the
stock of $3.25, vest over five years and expire ten years from the date of grant. On December 14, 2017, the
Company granted 52,000 stock options to officers and employees of the Company of which 26,150 and
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18,750 were exercisable at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. The options were
granted with an exercise price at the then fair market value of the stock of $8.65, vest over five years and
expire ten years from the date of grant.
Information with respect to employee options outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019:
We ighte d
ave rage

average

e xe rcise

exercise

price

Share s
Outstanding at beginning of period

54,950

Granted
Exercised
Expired/cancelled/forfeited

Weighted

$

Shares
62,000

8.16

price
$

7.78

-

-

-

-

3,000

-

7,050

-

-

-

-

-

Outstanding at end of period

51,950

$

8.13

54,950

$

8.16

Exercisable at end of period

31,150

$

7.78

23,750

$

7.51

A summary of information about stock options outstanding is as follows at December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019:
Weighted average

Outstanding

Remaining

Exercisable

exercise price

shares

life (years)

shares

$

3.25

5,000

1.3

5,000

$

8.65

46,950

7.0

26,150

51,950
$

Intrinsic value on December 31, 2020

31,150
$

460,783

287,103

Weighted average

Outstanding

Remaining

Exercisable

exercise price

shares

life (years)

shares

$

3.25

5,000

2.3

5,000

$

8.65

49,950

8.0

18,750

54,950
$

Intrinsic value on December 31, 2019
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The aggregate intrinsic value as presented in the preceding table is calculated as the difference between
the estimated fair value of the stock as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, and the exercise
price of the option and multiplying by the number of options outstanding.
The Company recognized $9,000 and $13,600 in expense during the years ended December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, respectively relating to the granting of stock options.
As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, there was $10,200 and $19,100 in future compensation
expense associated with outstanding stock options.
NOTE 12 – REGULATORY MATTERS
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possible
additional discretionary actions by the regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on
the Company's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures
of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.
The Basel III Capital Rules became effective for the Bank on January 1, 2015 (subject to a phase-in period
for certain provisions). Quantitative measures established by the Basel III Capital Rules to ensure capital
adequacy require the maintenance of minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital, and Total capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets
(as defined), and of Tier 1 capital to adjusted quarterly average assets (as defined).
In connection with the adoption of the Basel III Capital Rules, the Bank elected to opt-out of the requirement
to include accumulated other comprehensive income in Common Equity Tier 1 capital. Common Equity
Tier 1 capital for the Bank is reduced by goodwill and other intangible assets, net of associated deferred tax
liabilities and subject to transition provisions.
Insured depository institutions are required to meet the following in order to qualify as "well capitalized:"
(1) a common equity Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.5%; (2) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 8%; (3)
a total risk-based capital ratio of 10%; and (4) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 5%
The implementation of a capital conservation buffer of 2.5% is also required. The Basel III Capital Rules
also provide for a "countercyclical capital buffer" that is applicable to only certain covered institutions and
does not have any current applicability to the Bank. The aforementioned capital conservation buffer is
designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress. Banking institutions with a ratio of Common
Equity Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets above the minimum but below the conservation buffer (or
below the combined capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer, when the latter is
applied) will face constraints on dividends, equity repurchases, and compensation based on the amount of
the shortfall.
The following table presents actual and required capital ratios as of December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019 for the Bank under the Basel III Capital Rules. Capital levels required to be considered well
capitalized are based upon prompt corrective action regulations, as amended to reflect the changes under
the Basel III Capital Rules.
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As of December 31, 2020, the most recent notification from the FDIC has categorized the Bank as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well
capitalized the
Bank must maintain ratios as set forth in the table. There have been no conditions or events since that
notification that management believes have changed the Bank's category.
The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, through formal or informal agreement, has the authority to
require an institution to maintain higher capital ratios than those provided by statute, to be categorized as
well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.

The following table presents the Bank's capital position based on the financial statements:
T o be well
capitalized under
Actual
December 31, 2020

Amount

Ratio

For capital

prompt corrective

adequacy purposes

action provisions

Amount

Ratio

Amount

Ratio

(In thousands)
T ier 1 Leverage ratio

$

84,764

13.05%

$

25,980

4.00% $

32,475

5.00%

T ier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)

$

84,764

16.21%

$

44,460

8.50%

$

41,845

8.00%

$

84,764

16.21%

$

36,614

7.00% $

33,999

6.50%

$

86,620

16.56%

$

54,921

10.50%

$

52,306

T ier 1 Leverage ratio

$

60,721

20.74%

$

11,709

4.00%

$

14,636

5.00%

T ier 1 capital (to risk-weighted assets)

$

60,721

32.34%

$

15,960

8.50%

$

15,021

8.00%

$

60,721

32.34%

$

13,143

7.00%

$

12,205

6.50%

$

62,014

33.02%

$

19,715

10.50%

$

18,776

Common Equity T ier 1 Capital Ratio (to
risk-weighted assets)
T otal Capital ratio (to risk-weighted
assets)

10.00%

December 31, 2019

Common Equity T ier 1 Capital Ratio (to
risk-weighted assets)
T otal Capital ratio (to risk-weighted
assets)
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The following table provides a reconciliation of total stockholders' equity per the consolidated financial
statements to capital amounts reflected in the table above:
12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In t housands)
T ot al st ockholders' equit y on consolidat ed balance sheet

$

74,021

$

66,003

Adjust ment s t o regulat ory capit al
Accumulat ed ot her comprehensive income
Int angible asset s (core deposit int angible and goodwill) of Bank
Disallowed deferred t ax asset s, net

(14)
(2,329)

(6,602)

(2,133)

26,202

Equit y of BV Financial, Inc. less t han (great er t han)equit y of Bank
T angible, T ier 1, and core capit al
Allowance for loan losses (limit ed)
$

T ot al capit al

(361)
(8,496)

(806)

84,764

60,721

1,856

1,293

86,620

$

62,014

The Bank was allowed a special bad debt deduction at various percentages of otherwise taxable income for
various years through December 1, 1987. If the amounts, which qualified as deductions for federal income
tax purposes prior to December 31, 1987 are later used for purposes other than to absorb loan losses,
including distributions in liquidations, they will be subject to federal and state income tax at the then current
corporate rate. Retained earnings at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 includes $1.5 million for
which no provision for income tax has been provided. The unrecorded deferred income tax liability on the
above amount was approximately $413,000.
Federal regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions by an insured depository institution,
including cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares and payments to shareholders of another
institution in a cash-out merger. Under the regulations, an application to and prior approval of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation is required prior to any capital distribution if the institution does not meet
the criteria for "expedited treatment" of applications under Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
regulations (i.e., generally, examination and Community Reinvestment Act ratings in the two top
categories), the total capital distributions for the calendar year exceed net income for that year plus the
amount of retained net income for the preceding two years, the institution would be undercapitalized
following the distribution or the distribution would otherwise be contrary to a statute, regulation or
agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
The Board of Directors of the M.H.C. determines whether the M.H.C. will waive or receive dividends
declared by the Company each time the Company declares a dividend. The M.H.C. may elect to receive
dividends and utilize such funds to pay general corporate expenses. The M.H.C. is required to apply to the
Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System with written notice of its intent to waive its dividends
prior to the proposed declaration date of the dividend. The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System has issued an interim final rule providing that it will not object to dividend waivers under certain
circumstances where the waiver is not detrimental to the safe and sound operation of the savings institution
and a majority of the mutual holding company’s members have approved the waiver of dividends by the
mutual holding company within the previous twelve months. If a waiver is granted, dividends waived by
the M.H.C. will be excluded from the Company's capital accounts for purposes of calculating dividend
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payments to minority shareholders. Through December 31, 2020, the M.H.C. waived the right to receive
its portion of the cash dividends paid, which totaled $1.2 million on a cumulative basis.
In connection with the purchase of Kopernik Bank on February 28, 2019, the Company and Bay-Vanguard
M.H.C. became a Maryland chartered bank holding company. As such, Bay-Vanguard M.H.C. lost its
ability to waive cash dividends paid by the Company.
Banks are required to carry noninterest-bearing cash reserves at specified percentages of deposit balances.
The Bank's normal amount of cash on hand and on deposit with other banks is sufficient to satisfy the
reserve requirements.
NOTE 13– INCOME TAXES
The income tax provision consists of the following for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019:

12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
Current expense
$

Federal

487

$

314

State
Deferred expense
$

Income tax expense
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$
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are presented below:
12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In t housands)
Deferred t ax asset s
$

Deferred compensat ion

773

$

759

Allowance for loan losses

519

Merger fair value adjust ment s

718

70

Goodwill impairment

115

187

20

19

7,486

2,070

9

22

Foreclosed real est at e writ e-downs and deferred gain
Net operat ing loss carryover
Nonaccrual int erest

449

221

10,089

3,715

Ot her
T ot al deferred t ax asset s

367

Deferred t ax liabilit ies
P repaid expenses

205

59

Core deposit int angible

391

311

-

295

Merger fair value adjust ment s
Depreciat ion
T ot al deferred t ax liabilit ies
$

T ot al deferred t ax asset s, net

1,337

5

1,933

670

8,156

$

The amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to income before income tax
provision is different than the taxes provided for the following reasons:

12/31/2019

12/31/2020
Percent of
Amount

pretax income

Percent of
Amount

pretax income

(In thousands)
Statutory federal income tax rate

$

State tax, net of federal income tax provision
T ax exempt income

1,957

Income T ax Expense

$

$

701

21.0 %

384

4.1

(918)

(9.9)

(33)

(1.0)

98

1.0

4

0.1

(172)

(1.7)

(8)

(0.2)

Nondeductible merger expenses
Other

21.0 %

1,349
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Management has determined that no deferred tax asset valuation was warranted for its goodwill impairment
write-down or net operating loss carryover due to the expectation of future taxable income and the
availability of tax planning strategies to generate future income to offset operating losses. The Company
acquired a net operating loss carryover of $7.7 million from Kopernik in 2019 and $7.1 million and $13.5
million from MB Bancorp and Delmarva Bancshares, respectively in 2020 in connection with the mergers.
The Company’s total remaining net operating loss carryover was $25.6 million as of December 31, 2020.
The Company’s use of the net operating loss acquired will be limited to $1.5 million per year in future
years. The Company’s net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire in the year ending December
31, 2032.
The Company's income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal and state taxing
authorities. They are currently open to audit under the applicable statutes of limitations by the Internal
Revenue Service for the years ended June 30, 2018 through December 31, 2020.
NOTE 14 – RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Bank has had, and may be expected to have in the future, banking transactions in the ordinary course
of business with directors, officers, their immediate families and affiliated companies (commonly referred
to as related parties), on the same terms including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the
time for comparable transactions with others. The following table presents a summary of the activity of
loans receivable from related parties during the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019:

12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
$

Balance, beginning

410

$

497

Advances

-

136

New related party

343

-

Less: retired directors

(135)

-

Repayments

(134)
$

Balance, ending

484

(223)
$

Deposits of related parties totaled $1,190,000 and $1,700,000 as of December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019, respectively.
NOTE 15 – LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
On January 1. 2019, the Company adopted ASU No. 2016-02 “Leases” (Topic 842). For the Company,
Topic 842 primarily affected the accounting treatment for operating leases on branch offices in which we
are the lessee. Upon adoption, the Company recognized an initial Right of Use (ROU) lease asset and
corresponding lease liability of $335,000.
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The following table shows the operating lease right of use assets and operating lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

Consolidated Balance
Sheet classification

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2020

(in thousands)
Operating lease right of use asset

Other assets

$1,177

$224

Operating lease liabilities

Other liabilities

$1,177

$224

Operating lease cost included in occupancy expense in the statement of income for the years ending
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 was $261,000 and $160,000, respectively.
Future undiscounted lease payments for operating leases, including those option years for which the
Company is reasonable certain to renew, are as follows:
Year ending December 31,

Amount

2021

$

257

2022

233

2023

223

2024

199

2025

205

T hereaft er

122

T ot al lease payment s

1,239

Less imput ed int erest

(62)

Present value of operat ing lease liabilit ies

$

1,177

For operating leases as of December 31, 2020, the weighted average lease term is 5.25 years and the
weighted average discount rate is 2.38%. During the year ended December 31, 2020, cash paid for amounts
included in the measurement of lease liabilities was $263,000.
NOTE 16 – COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND CONCENTRATION OF CASH ON
DEPOSIT
Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business, which, in the opinion of
management, will have no material effect on the Company's consolidated financial position or results of
operations.
As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, the Bank had $600,000 and $1.2 million, respectively,
on deposit at the FHLB of Atlanta. These funds are not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation. In the event of a failure of the FHLB of Atlanta, the other Federal Home Loan Banks would
support the operations of the failed institution. Additionally, as of December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019, the Bank had $7.5 million and $2.8 million, respectively on deposit at a correspondent bank and
$11.1 million and $0 on deposit at another correspondent bank..
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NOTE 17 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments are summarized below. The fair values are
estimates derived primarily from present value techniques and may not be indicative of the net realizable
or liquidation values. The calculation of estimated fair values is based on market conditions at a specific
point in time and may not reflect current or future fair values.
Accounting standards establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation methods used
to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3 measurements).
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for
identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly
or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.
Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value
measurement and unobservable (i.e. supported with little or no market activity).
An asset or liability's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy used at December
31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, are as follows:

T otal

De ce mbe r 31, 2020

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Quoted prices

Significant

Significant

in active

other

other

markets for

observable

unobservable

identical assets

inputs

inputs

(In thousands)
Securities available for sale
Corporate securities

$

Mortgage-backed securities

749

$

31,714
$

-

$

-

749

$

31,714

-

32,463

$

-

$

32,463

$

-

3,994

$

-

$

3,994

$

-

De ce mbe r 31, 2019
Securities available for sale
U.S. government agency securities

$

Mortgage-backed securities

-

4,355
$
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$

-

4,355
$

8,349

$

-
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NOTE 17 –FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following valuation techniques were used to measure the fair value of assets in the table above on a
recurring basis as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
Securities available for sale - The fair values of securities available for sale were based on available market
pricing for the securities. We rely on third party brokers to obtain and provide us with this market pricing
from a definitive security pricing source.
Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy used at
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, are as follows:

De ce mbe r 31, 2020

Quoted prices

Significant

Significant

in active

other

other

markets for

observable

unobservable

identical assets

inputs

inputs

(In thousands)
Impaired loans

$

13,782

$

16,572

$

$

5,049

$

Foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets

$

2,790

-

$

-

$

13,782

-

$

-

$

16,572

-

$

-

$

5,049

2,790

-

-

De ce mbe r 31, 2019
Impaired loans
Foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets
$

5,499

$

-

450

-

-

450

$

-

$

5,499

The following valuation techniques were used to measure the fair value of assets in the tables above on a
nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
Impaired loans - Loans included in the table have been measured for impairment generally based on the
fair value of the loan's collateral. Fair value was determined based upon a discounted cash flow from the
expected proceeds of the underlying collateral. These loans are included as Level 3 fair value, based upon
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurements. The fair value consists of the
loan balance reduced by any specific impairment reserve.
There were no transfers in or out of the Level 3 category after the loans were classified as impaired loans.
Foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets - Fair value of foreclosed assets was based on the Company's
appraisal of the property less costs to sell. This value was determined from a current industry standard
appraisal guide based on the value of similar properties adjusted for factors including condition and location
of property.
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NOTE 17 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)
Changes in the balance of foreclosed real estate and repossessed assets during the 18 months ended
December 31, 2020 and the year ended December 31, 2019, were as follows:
12/31/2019

12/31/2020

(In thousands)
$

Beginning of period balance

450

$

146

Improvements and additions

2,637

From Merger

340
556
-

(4)

(69)

Proceeds from sale

(422)

(338)

Gain (loss) on sale

(17)

(39)

Write-downs

$

End of period balance

2,790

$

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value.
Time Deposits in Other Banks
The fair value of time deposits in other banks is estimated using the rates currently available for deposits
of similar remaining maturities.
Investment Securities
Fair values for securities, excluding Federal Home Loan Bank stock, are based on available market prices.
The carrying amount of Federal Home Loan Bank stock approximates fair value based on the redemption
provisions of the Federal Home Loan Bank.
Loans Receivable
The fair value of loans receivable were determined using an exit price methodology as prescribed by FASB
Accounting Standards Update 2016-01. The exit price estimation of fair value is based on the present value
of the expected cash flows. The projected cash flows are based on the contractual terms of the loans,
adjusted for prepayments and use of a discount rate based on the relative risk of the cash flows, taking into
account the loan type, maturity of the loan, liquidity risk, servicing costs, and a required return on debt and
capital.
Deposits
The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (e.g., interest and noninterest checking, savings, and certain
types of money market accounts) are, by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting
date (i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on such certificates to a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on these deposits.
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NOTE 17 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta
The fair value of advances is estimated discounting the contractual cash flows using rates currently offered
for advances with similar terms and remaining maturities.
Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Instruments
Fair values for off-balance sheet, credit-related financial instruments are based on fees currently charged to
enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
counterparties' credit standing. The fair values of these instruments were not significant at December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019.
The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments at December
31, 2020 and December 31, 2019:
De ce mbe r 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

C arrying

Fair

amount

value

Carrying

Fair

amount

value

(In thousands)
Financial asse ts
Cash and cash equivalents

$

91,990

$

91,990

$

24,230

$

24,230

Securities held to maturity

7,466

7,561

3,956

4,031

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stock

1,280

1,280

500

500

235,194

237,898

Mortgage Loans Held for sale
Loans receivable

322

322

607,073

615,538

Financial liabilitie s
Deposits

$

675,096
54,655

Borrowings
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$

671,810
53,529

$

217,822
3,000

$

213,272
3,224
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NOTE 18 – CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
Information as to the financial position of BV Financial, Inc. and its results of operations and cash flows as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, are summarized below.

12/31/2020

Statement of Financial Condition

12/31/2019

(in thousands)
Asse ts
$

Cash

8,752

$

99,726

Investment in subsidiary

65,189

6,326

Goodwill

778
-

655

Other assets
$

T otal Assets

115,459

52
$

66,019

Liabilitie s and Stockholde rs Equity
40,919

Borrowings

-

Other Liabilities

519

16

T otal Liabilities

41,438

16

T otal Stockholders Equity

74,021

66,003

$

T otal Liabilities & Equity

115,459

$

12/31/2020

Statement of Income
$

Interest income

-

Cash dividends from subsidiary

53,911

T otal interest and dividend income

53,911

12/31/2019
$

1
1

435

Interest Expense

66,019

-

53,476

Net interest and dividend income

1

3,285

Gain on bargain purchase of MB Bancorp, Inc.

-

496

Noninterest expense

4

56,265

Income(loss) before tax

(3)

111

Income tax benefit

-

56,376

Income (loss) before equity in net income if subsidiary

(3)

(48,731)

Equity in undistributed net income of subsidiary
$

Net Income
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2,476
$

2,473
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NOTE 18 – CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
State me nts of C ash Flows

12/31/2020

12/31/2019

(In thousands)
C ash flows from ope rating activitie s
Net income

$

7,645

$

2,473

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used by operating activities
Equity in net income of subsidiary

(2,476)

-

Dividend in excess of net income of subsidiary

48,731

-

41

-

Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt fair value adjustments
Non-cash income-gain on bargain purchase

-

(3,285)

Increase in other assets
Increase in other liabilities
Net cash used by operating activities

(603)

(14)

705

(43)

53,234

(60)

C ash flows from inve sting activitie s
Purchase of MB Bancorp and Delmarva Bancshares
Cash from mergers
Principal collected on ESOP loan
Net cash provided by investing activities

(83,838)

-

4,269

-

-

94

(79,569)

94

C ash flows from financing activitie s
Net proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt

-

34,223

Stock Options Exercised
Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

86

25

34,309

25

7,974

59

778

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
$

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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8,752

719
$

778

Locations

Anne Arundel County
Pasadena
8070 Ritchie Highway
Pasadena, Maryland 21122

Dorchester County
Cambridge-High Street
304 High Street
Cambridge, MD 21613

Baltimore County
Main Office
7114 North Point Road
Edgemere, Maryland 21219

Cambridge-Woods Road
803 Woods Road
Cambridge, MD 21613

Dundalk
3101 North Point Road
Baltimore, Maryland 21222

Hurlock
100 Pine Street
Hurlock, MD 21643

Essex
532 Eastern Boulevard
Baltimore, Maryland 21221

Harford County
Aberdeen
501 South Stepney Road
Aberdeen, MD 21001

Perry Hall
8639 Belair Road
Baltimore, MD 21236

Forest Hill
1920 Rock Spring Road
Forest Hill, MD 21050

Baltimore City
Bayview
6201 Eastern Avenue
Baltimore, Maryland 21224

Talbot County
Easton-Glebe Road
8707 Commerce Drive
Easton, MD 21601

Canton
2101 Eastern Avenue
Baltimore, Maryland 21231

Easton-Idlewild Avenue
501 Idlewild Avenue
Easton, MD 21601

Locust Point
921 East Fort Avenue, Suite 102
Baltimore, Maryland 21230

Oxford
104 Factory Street
Oxford, MD 21654

Tilghman Island Interactive Teller Machine
6204 Tilghman Island Road
Sherwood, MD 21665
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